

# CXT AT HOWARD MILLER STEELHEAD PARK

# **PROJECT MANUAL**

Civil Engineer Freeland and Associates, Inc. 2500 Elm Street, Suite 1 Bellingham, WA 98225

Contact
Tony Freeland, P.E.
360.650.1408 Office
tfreeland@freelandengineerning.com

October 28, 2024

# SECTION 00 00 00 TABLE OF CONTENTS

# **Contents**

SECTION 00 10 00 - BIDDER'S CHECKLIST	3
SECTION 00 10 10 - BID INVITATION	5
SECTION 00 15 30 - BIDDER RESPONSIBILITY CRITERIA	7
SECTION 00 20 00 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	19
SECTION 00 41 00 - BID FORM	24
SECTION 00 43 30 - BID SECURITY FORM	28
SECTION 00 45 70 - RETAINAGE INVESTMENT OPTION	29
SECTION 00 52 00 - VENDOR SERVICES AGREEMENT	30
SECTION 00 60 00 - BONDS AND CERTIFICATES	36
SECTION 00 61 40 - PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND	40
SECTION 00 62 30 - CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE	41
SECTION 00 82 50 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS	43
SECTION 00 83 00 - DEPARTMENT OF LABOR WAGE RATES	50

# **CIVIL DRAWINGS**

- C1 COVER SHEET & EXISTING CONDITIONS
- C2 DEMO & EROSION CONTROL PLAN
- C3 SITE PLAN
- C4 DETAILS

## **CXT DOCUMENTS**

DENALI SECTIONAL DRAWINGS, CALCULATIONS, WSEC

## **APPENDIX**

**PERMITS** 

#### **SECTION 00 10 00 - BIDDER'S CHECKLIST**

PART 1 - THIS BIDDER CHECKLIST IS PROVIDED FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE BIDDERS. THIS LIST MAY NOT INCLUDE ALL BIDDER RESPONSIBILITIES. IT DOES NOT RELIEVE BIDDERS FROM RESPONSIBILITY FOR SUBMITTING FULLY COMPLIANT BIDS FOR THIS PROJECT. SKAGIT COUNTY DOES NOT ASSUME ANY LIABILITY FOR BIDDER COMPLIANCE WITH BID REQUIREMENTS BY PROVIDING THIS CHECKLIST.

#### **BID PROPOSAL FORM**

- A. Ensure that the Bid Proposal Form Section 00 41 00 is completed filled out, signed and notarized. Show bid price in both words and numerals, and unit prices for every bid item, if applicable.
- B. Ensure that all Addenda are acknowledged on the Bid Proposal Form.
- C. Ensure that Bid Proposal Form DOES NOT CONTAIN any unauthorized addition, deletion, alternate bid, or condition.
- D. Ensure that the Bid Proposal Form is properly executed by the official authorized to represent the Bidder.
- E. Refer to Section 00 15 30 Bidders Responsibility Criteria for documents to be submitted before bid, with bid and/or after bid opening date.
- F. The General Contractor awarded the contract is responsible for obtaining additional sets of construction documents as deemed necessary by the Contractor for use during the project. Bidders are advised to consider this cost when preparing their bid.

#### ATTACHMENTS TO THE BID PROPOSAL FORM

- A. Enclose with the Bid Proposal Form the Bid Guaranty for not less than 5% of the base bid amount.
- B. Bid Bond Security Form: This form is to be executed by the bidder and the surety company unless bid accompanied by a certified check. The amount of this bond shall not be less than five (5%) percent of the total amount of the bid and may be shown in dollars or on a percentage basis.
- C. Enclose with the Bid Proposal Form the "Supplemental Bidder Responsibility Declaration of Bidder" form Section 00 15 30, signed and notarized.
- D. Enclose with the Bid Proposal Form the "Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension or Ineligibility" form, signed.

# The following forms are to be executed after the contract is awarded:

- A. CONTRACT: This agreement to be executed by the successful bidder.
- B. PERFORMANCE BOND: One hundred percent of the Contract Price to be executed by the successful bidder and his surety company. The surety on such bonds shall be a duly authorized surety company satisfactory of the Owner.
- C. RETAINAGE INVESTMENT OPTION: This agreement to be executed by the successful bidder.
- D. MANDATORY BIDDER RESPONSBILITY CHECKLIST and SUBCONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY CHECKLIST.
- E. CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION: Concerning Labor Standards and Prevailing Wage Requirements. Submit Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages. (Form F 700-029-000, available at Offices of Washington State Department of Labor and Industries).

#### **SECTION 00 10 10 - BID INVITATION**

#### SKAGIT COUNTY PARKS CXT AT HOWARD MILLER STEELHEAD PARK

**NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN** that bids will be received Tuesday, November 19, 2024 until 3:00 p.m. at the Skagit County Parks Department, 1730 Continental Place, Mount Vernon, Washington, 98273. Bids must be received and secured until the time set for the opening. All bids must be plainly identified as:

# Skagit County Parks CXT AT HOWARD MILLER STEELHEAD PARK

## **ITEM FOR BID**:

The project consists of erosion control, structure demolition, preparation of a building pad, concrete sidewalk, utility reconnections, final utility hook-ups, coordination with building supplier, providing crane access route and surfacing restoration. The base bid estimate is \$55,000 including Washington State sales tax and allowance.

#### TIME OF COMPLETION:

Construction window for this project is January 6, 2025, through February 14, 2025. Work consists of erosion control, demolition, preparation of building pad, utility reconnection and stub ups final utility hook ups, concrete sidewalk, coordination with building supplier, prepare crane access route, continued erosion control maintenance and measures, and surfacing restoration. All work must be substantially complete by February 14, 2025.

# **BID DOCUMENTS/NON-MANDATORY BID MEETING:**

Bid documents are contained herein as sent to the pre-selected respective bidder(s). A non-mandatory pre-bid conference for prospective bidders will be held on site Monday, November 4, 2024. The meeting will take place at 10:00 a.m. at the project site address 52804 Rockport Park Road, Rockport, Howard Miller Steelhead Park.

Technical questions regarding the project must be submitted by email to Miles McEathron mmceathron@freelandengineering.com. Questions must be received by November 12, 2024.

Freeland Engineering will provide confirmation of the question(s) receipt within 24 hours; if a bidder does not receive such confirmation it is solely responsible to re-send the question(s). The owner's responses will be provided to all bidders by addendum. No oral responses from the Owner or its representatives may be relied upon by bidders.

The Successful Bidder will be required to furnish the necessary additional Bond(s) for the faithful performance of the Work, as prescribed in the Bidding Documents.

#### **CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION:**

Pursuant to RCW 39.06, the Bidder shall be registered and licensed as required by the laws of the State of Washington, including but not limited to RCW 18.27.

In order to perform public work, the successful Bidder and Subcontractors, prior to Contract award, shall hold or obtain such licenses and registrations as required by State Statutes and Codes, and Federal and local laws and regulations.

#### **BIDDER RESPONSIBILITY CRITERIA**

To be considered a responsible bidder, the Bidder and the Bidder's subcontractors must meet the Bidder responsibility criteria and supplemental bidder responsibility criteria described in Section 00 15 30 of the Project Manual. By submitting a bid, the bidder confirms it has read, understands and meets the responsibility criteria. The bidder also confirms it has included those items required to be submitted with the bid as noted in said Section and will provide the additional items within 4 days of the bid opening as required by said Section.

#### RIGHT TO ACCEPT OR REJECT

The Owner shall reserve the right to reject any or all proposals and the right but not obligated to waive any irregularities or informalities in any proposal, subject to the Laws of the State of Washington as pertinent to Public Works and congruent with requirements and policies of Skagit County, and as may be deemed in the best interest of the Owner. In particular, the Owner reserves the right to reject a proposal which is not accompanied by the required bid security or subcontractors listing as described heretofore, and incomplete or irregular proposals which may exclude any item(s) as may be required by the Bid Documents. NO PROPOSALS WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THE TIME SET FOR RECEIPT OF BID PROPOSALS.

Skagit County is an Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action Employer. Small, Minority and Women-Owned firms are encouraged to submit bids.

#### WITHDRAWAL OF BID

No proposal may be withdrawn after the time set for the opening thereof, unless the Award of the Contract is delayed for a period of thirty (30) calendar days.

#### **SECTION 00 15 30 - BIDDER RESPONSIBILITY CRITERIA**

# **Low Responsible Bidder**

It is the intent of the Owner to award a contract to the low responsible bidder. In determining the bidder's responsibility, the Owner shall consider an overall accounting of the items listed below. The bidder must submit the following information, demonstrating that they meet the listed criteria:

#### 1-02 Bid Procedures and Conditions

#### 1-02.1 Qualifications of Bidder

A. Bidders must meet the minimum qualifications of RCW 39.04.350, as amended:

"Before award of a public works contract, a bidder must meet the following responsibility criteria to be considered a responsible bidder and qualified to be awarded a public works project. The bidder must:

- (a) At the time of bid submittal, have a certificate of registration in compliance with chapter 18.27 RCW;
- (b) Have a current State unified business identifier number;
- (c) If applicable, have industrial insurance coverage for the bidder's employees working in Washington as required in Title 51 RCW; an employment security department number as required in Title 50 RCW; and a State excise tax registration number as required in Title 82 RCW; and
- (d) Not be disqualified from bidding on any public works contract under RCW 39.06.010 or 39.12.065(3).
- (e) If bidding on a public works project subject to the apprenticeship utilization requirements in RCW 39.04.320, not have been found out of compliance by the Washington state apprenticeship and training council for working apprentices out of ratio, without appropriate supervision, or outside their approved work processes as outlined in their standards of apprenticeship under chapter 49.04 RCW for the one- year period immediately preceding the date of the bid solicitation; and
- B. In addition to the bidder responsibility criteria above, the bidder must also meet the following relevant supplemental bidder responsibility criteria applicable to the project:
  - a. The Bidder shall not currently be debarred or suspended by the Federal government. The Bidder shall not be listed as a current debarred or suspended bidder on the U.S. General Services Administration's "Excluded Parties List System" website. Bidder debarment or suspension status may be verified through this website: <a href="http://www.epls.gov/">http://www.epls.gov/</a>. The Owner may also use other sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this criteria.

- b. The Bidder shall not owe delinquent taxes to the Washington State Department of Revenue, without a payment plan approved by the Washington State Department of Revenue. The Bidder shall not be listed on the Washington State Department of Revenue's "Delinquent Taxpayer List", which may be verified at the following website: <a href="http://dor.wa.gov/content/fileandpataxes/latefiling/dtlwest.aspx">http://dor.wa.gov/content/fileandpataxes/latefiling/dtlwest.aspx</a>. The Owner may also use other sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this supplemental criteria.
- c. The Bidder shall not have been convicted of a crime involving bidding on a public works contract within five (5) years prior to the bid submittal deadline. The Bidder shall provide a duly executed sworn statement (on the included form, or on a form otherwise determined to be acceptable by the Owner), that the Bidder has not been convicted of a crime involving bidding on a public works contract. The Owner may also use independent sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this supplemental criteria.
- d. The Bidder's standard subcontract form shall include the subcontractor responsibility language required by RCW 39.06.020, and the Bidder shall have an established written procedure which the Bidder uses to validate the responsibility of each of its subcontractors. The Bidder's subcontract form shall also include a requirement that each of its subcontractors shall have and document a similar procedure to determine whether the sub-tier subcontractors with whom it contracts are also "responsible" contractors as defined per RCW 39.06.020. The Bidder shall submit a copy of its standard subcontract form for review by the Owner, a written description of the Bidder's procedure for validating the responsibility of the subcontractors with which the Bidder contracts, and a duly executed sworn statement (on the included form, or in a form otherwise determined to be acceptable by the Owner) that the Bidder has properly made a determination of responsibility for all subcontractors for the project. The Owner may also use independent sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this supplemental criteria.
- e. The Bidder shall not have a record of prevailing wage complaints filed against the Bidder within five (5) years prior to the bid submittal date that demonstrates a pattern of failing to pay workers prevailing wages, unless there are extenuating circumstances that are acceptable to the Owner. The Bidder shall submit a list of prevailing wage complaints filed against it within five (5) years of the bid submittal date along with a written explanation of each complaint, and how it was resolved. The Owner shall evaluate the explanations provided by the Bidder (and the resolution of each complaint) to determine whether the complaints demonstrate a

pattern of the Bidder failing to pay its workers prevailing wages as required. The Owner may also evaluate complaints filed within the time period specified that were not reported by the Bidder. The Owner may also use independent sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this supplemental criteria.

- f. The Bidder shall not have had any public works contract terminated for cause by a government agency during the five (5) year period immediately preceding the bid submittal deadline for the project, unless there are extenuating circumstances acceptable to the Owner. The Bidder shall provide a duly executed sworn statement (on the included form, or in a form otherwise determined to be acceptable by the Owner), that the Bidder has not had any public works contract terminated for cause by a government agency during the five (5) year period immediately preceding the bid submittal deadline for the project. The Owner may also use independent sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this supplemental criteria.
- g. The Bidder shall not have a record of excessive claims filed against the retainage or payment bonds for public works projects within three (3) years of the bid submittal date, that demonstrate a lack of effective management by the Bidder of making timely and appropriate payments to its subcontractors, suppliers, and workers, unless there are extenuating circumstances which are acceptable to the Owner. The Bidder shall submit a list of all public works projects that the Bidder has completed within the previous three (3) years prior to the bid submittal date, and include for each project the following information:
  - i. The owner for each public works project, and contact information for each owner.
  - ii. A list of claims filed against the retainage and/or payment bond(s) for each of the public works project.
  - iii. A written explanation of the circumstances surrounding each claim against the retainage and/or payment bond(s), and an explanation as to the ultimate resolution of each claim.

The Owner may contact other previous owners to validate the information provided by the Bidder. The Owner may also use independent sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this supplemental criteria.

- h. Within five (5) years prior to the bid submittal date the Bidder must have completed a minimum of at least three (3) other projects for a Federal, State, or local governmental agency. The Bidder shall provide the following information pertaining to these three (3) projects:
  - i. The contact information for the Federal, State, or local contracting agency for whom the project was completed;
  - ii. Description of the project;

- iii. Start and completion dates for the project;
- iv. Awarded contract amount:
- v. Final contract amount;
- vi. Other additional information or documentation pertaining to the projects as may be requested by the Owner.

The Owner may contact other previous owners to validate the information provided by the Bidder. The Owner may also use independent sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this supplemental criteria.

- The Bidder shall have been duly incorporated and actively doing business in the State of Washington for a minimum of at least five (5) years prior to the bid submittal date. The Bidder shall provide the Owner with a adequate documentation confirming that the Bidder has been duly incorporated and actively doing business in the State of Washington for a minimum of at least five (5) years prior to the bid submittal date, including, but not necessarily limited to, documentation from the Washington State Secretary of State's Office. Such documentation shall include, but is not necessarily limited to, a copy of the Bidder's Certificate of Existence / Authorization, a copy of the Bidder's Certificate of Incorporation / Formation / Authority, a certified copy of the Bidder's Original Registration Document (i.e., Articles of Incorporation, Certificate of Authority, Certificate of Formation, or Foreign Limited Liability Registration), and any other supporting information or documentation as may otherwise be requested by the Owner (including, but not necessarily limited to, copies of the Bidder's business licenses and contractor's licenses for the previous five [5] years prior to the bid submittal date). The Owner may also use other sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this supplemental criteria.
- j. Within two (2) years prior to the bid submittal date the Bidder shall not have received any willful safety violations, and the Bidder shall not have received more than two (2) serious safety violations (i.e., WISHA / OSHA written citations) from the Washington State Department Labor & Industries or analogous agency with jurisdiction in the location the work was performed, regardless of whether such willful and/or serious safety violations have been abated or not. The Bidder shall provide Owner with a list of any and all willful and/or serious safety violations (i.e., WISHA / OSHA written citations) from the Washington State Department Labor & Industries (or analogous agency with jurisdiction in the location the work was performed), regardless of whether such willful and/or serious safety violations have been abated or not. The Owner may verify such information provided with the Washington State Department Labor & Industries or analogous agency with jurisdiction in the location the work was performed. The Owner may also use other sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with this supplemental criteria.

- k. The Bidder shall not be found out of compliance with Washington State Apprenticeship and Training Council for working apprentices out of ratio, without supervision, or outside of their approved work processes as outlined in the standards of apprenticeship under chapter 49.04 RCW for the one year period immediately preceding the date of the bid solicitation.
- I. Within five (5) years prior to the bid submittal date the Bidder shall have successfully completed at least one (1) other project of a similar size and scope as required by the contract documents for this project. The project must have had a total construction cost of at least \$2,000,000. In evaluating whether the other project(s) was/were "successfully completed," the Owner may verify previous owner references for the previous project(s), and may evaluate the previous owner's assessment of the Bidder performance, including but not limited to the following areas:
  - i. Quality control;
  - ii. Safety record;
  - iii. Timeliness of performance;
  - iv. Use of skilled personnel;
  - v. Management of subcontractors;
  - vi. Availability of and use of appropriate equipment;
  - vii. Compliance with contract documents;
  - viii. Management of submittals process, change orders, and close-out.
  - ix. Construction within occupied area.

For the purposes of meeting this criterion, the Owner has determined that "similar size and scope" to this project means project(s) that have the following characteristics: (i) The awarded project(s) contract amount must have been of not less than \$2,000,000; The project(s) must have included significant remodeling of areas greater than 10,000 square feet. The Bidder shall submit a list of other project (s) of similar size and scope to this project, including information on a minimum of at least one (1) project of similar size and scope to this project or larger completed within five (5) years prior to the bid submittal date. The information about each project shall include the following:

- 1. Owner's name and contact information for the owner's representative;
- 2. Awarded contract amount;
- 3. Final contract amount;

- 4. A description of the scope of the project and how the project is similar to this project;
- 5. The Bidder's assessment of its performance of each project, including but not limited to the following:
  - a. Quality control;
  - b. Safety record;
  - c. Timeliness of performance;
  - d. Use of skilled personnel;
  - e. Management of subcontractors:
  - f. Availability of and use of appropriate equipment;
  - g. Compliance with contract documents;
  - h. Management of submittals process and change orders.
  - i. Construction within occupied areas.
- C. All Bidders must supply and provide the forgoing described bidder responsibility information, documentation, and materials to the satisfaction of the Owner. If a Bidder fails to supply the required bidder responsibility documentation, information, or materials, then Bidder may be determined by the Owner to be non-responsive, and the bid may be rejected on this basis. If the Owner determines the bidder does not meet the bidder responsibility criteria above and is therefore not a responsible bidder, the Owner shall notify the bidder in writing with the reasons for its determination. If the bidder disagrees with this determination, it may appeal the determination within twenty four (24) hours of receipt of the Owner's determination by presenting additional written information to the Owner. The Owner will consider the additional information before issuing its final determination. If the Owner's final determination affirms that the bidder is not responsible, the Owner will not execute a contract with any other bidder until two (2) business days after the bidder determined to be not responsible has received the final determination. Please note that the above-described information, materials, and documentation requested by the Owner for purposes of determining Bidder responsibility is not necessarily exclusive, and the Owner expressly reserves the right to request additional information, materials, and documentation as may be determined to be necessary or desirable by the Owner in order to evaluate and determine Bidder's compliance with the above-described bidder responsibility criteria. At all times, the Owner may also use other sources of information that may be available to otherwise determine whether the Bidder is in compliance with the forgoing bidder responsibility criteria.

# D. <u>Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension or Ineligibility:</u>

The Contractor certifies by signing this Agreement that Contractor is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this contract by any federal department or agency. Further, Contractor agrees not to enter into any arrangements or contracts related to this contract with any party that is on the "General Service Administration List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs" at <a href="http://epls.arnet.gov/">http://epls.arnet.gov/</a>.

CONTRACTOR:	
Authorizing Signature	
Date	
Federal Tax ID#:	
Contractor Lic.#:	

This form is to be submitted by the bidder with his bid.

#### SUPPLEMENTAL BIDDER RESPONSIBILITY - DECLARATION OF BIDDER

In accordance with the Contract Provisions and Plans the Bidder must provide the following sworn statement relevant to the supplemental bidder responsibility applicable to the project.

Name of Bidder:		
Address:		
Telephone No.:		<u>.</u>
E-Mail:		-
representative on behalf of	, the undersigned declarant, as the duly (herein the "Bidder") hereb in the scope of my firsthand knowledge and author	y make this

- 1. I hereby certify, swear, and affirm under penalty of perjury, that the Bidder has not been convicted of a crime involving bidding on a public works contract within the five (5) year period immediately preceding the bid submittal deadline for the project; and
- 2. I hereby certify, swear and affirm under penalty of perjury, that as of the date of this declaration (below), that the Bidder has hereby made a proper determination of bidder responsibility for all subcontractors for the project in accordance with the terms of RCW 39.06, RCW 39.04.350, and in accordance with the terms of the Bidder's written procedure for validating the responsibility of all subcontractors for the project with which the Bidder contracts; and
- 3. I hereby certify, swear and affirm under penalty of perjury, that the Bidder, has not had any public works contract terminated for cause by any State, Federal, or local government agency during the five (5) year period immediately preceding the bid submittal deadline for the project.

This form is to be submitted by the bidder with his bid.

		of the State of Washington this day , Washington.
Name of E	Bidder:	
Ву:		
Print Nam	e:	
Title:		
STATE OF WASH	HINGTON	
	SS.	
COUNTY OF		
who appeared be oath stated that h	fore me, and said person ack e/she was duly authorized ex	the thatis the person in the signed this instrument, on the secute the instrument and acknowledged it as the, to be the free and voluntary act of such
	and purposes herein mention	
DATED this	day of	, 2024.
	(SEAL)	
		Notary Public
		print name: Residing at
		My commission expires

# **END OF SECTION**

This form is to be submitted by the bidder with his bid.

#### Summary of Required Submittals with Bid

# 1-02.1, B., d.

....."The Bidder shall <u>submit a copy of its standard subcontract form for review by the Owner, a written description of the Bidder's procedure for validating the responsibility of the <u>subcontractors with which the Bidder contracts</u>, and a duly executed sworn statement (on the included form, or in a form otherwise determined to be acceptable by the Owner) that the Bidder has properly made a determination of responsibility for all subcontractors for the project...."</u>

# The information above is to be submitted by the bidder with his bid.

#### 1-02.1, B., e.

".....The Bidder shall submit a list of prevailing wage complaints filed against it within five (5) years of the bid submittal date along with a written explanation of each complaint, and how it was resolved...."

# The information above is to be submitted by the bidder with his bid if applicable. If no complaints have been filed against the bidder, so state on paper, reference this section and submit with bid.

# 1-02.1, B., g.

- ".....The Bidder shall submit a list of all public works projects that the Bidder has completed within the previous three (3) years prior to the bid submittal date, and include for each project the following information:
  - i. The owner for each public works project, and contact information for each owner.
  - ii. A list of claims filed against the retainage and/or payment bond(s) for each of the public works project.
  - iii. A written explanation of the circumstances surrounding each claim against the retainage and/or payment bond(s), and an explanation as to the ultimate resolution of each claim..."

#### The information above is to be submitted by the bidder with his bid.

#### 1-02.1, B., h.

- "....Within five (5) years prior to the bid submittal date the Bidder must have completed a minimum of at least three (3) other projects for a Federal, State, or local governmental agency. The Bidder shall provide the following information pertaining to these three (3) projects:
  - iv. The contact information for the Federal, State, or local contracting agency for whom the project was completed;
  - v. Description of the project;
  - vi. Start and completion dates for the project:

vii. Awarded contract amount;

viii. Final contract amount:

ix. Other additional information or documentation pertaining to the projects as may be requested by the Owner...."

# The information above is to be submitted by the bidder with his bid.

#### 1-02.1, B., i.

".....The Bidder shall provide the Owner with adequate documentation confirming that the Bidder has been duly incorporated and actively doing business in the State of Washington for a minimum of at least five (5) years prior to the bid submittal date, including, but not necessarily limited to, documentation from the Washington State Secretary of State's Office. Such documentation shall include, but is not necessarily limited to, a copy of the Bidder's Certificate of Existence / Authorization, a copy of the Bidder's Certificate of Incorporation / Formation / Authority, a certified copy of the Bidder's Original Registration Document (i.e., Articles of Incorporation, Certificate of Authority, Certificate of Formation, or Foreign Limited Liability Registration), and any other supporting information or documentation as may otherwise be requested by the Owner (including, but not necessarily limited to, copies of the Bidder's business licenses and contractor's licenses for the previous five [5] years prior to the bid submittal date)..."

# The information above is to be submitted after the bid opening by the (2) two low bidders within 10 days of the bid opening.

# 1-02.1, B., j.

".....The Bidder shall provide Owner with a list of any and all willful and/or serious safety violations (i.e., WISHA / OSHA written citations) from the Washington State Department Labor & Industries (or analogous agency with jurisdiction in the location the work was performed), regardless of whether such willful and/or serious safety violations have been abated or not..."

# The information above is to be submitted by the bidder with his bid if applicable. If no safety violations have been filed against the bidder, so state on paper, reference this section and submit with bid.

#### 1-02.1, B., k.

"....The Bidder shall submit a list of other project(s) of similar size and scope to this project, including information on a minimum of at least one (1) project of similar size and scope to this project completed within five (5) years prior to the bid submittal date. The information about each project shall include the following:

- 1. Owner's name and contact information for the owner's representative;
- 2. Awarded contract amount:
- 3. Final contract amount:
- 4. A description of the scope of the project and how the project is similar to this project;
- 5. The Bidder's assessment of its performance of each project, including but not limited to the following:

- a. Quality control;
- b. Safety record;
- c. Timeliness of performance;
- d. Use of skilled personnel;
- e. Management of subcontractors;
- f. Availability of and use of appropriate equipment;
- g. Compliance with contract documents; Management of submittals process and change orders...."

## 1-02.1, D.

A. Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension or Ineligibility:

The information above is to be submitted by the bidder with his bid.

#### **SECTION 00 20 00 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS**

#### A. EXAMINATION OF SITE AND CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

- 1. Before submitting a proposal, the bidder shall:
  - a. Carefully examine the drawings and specifications,
  - b. Visit the site of the work,
  - c. Fully inform itself of existing conditions and limitations relating to the construction of the project and the employment of labor thereon. Failure to do so will not relieve a successful bidder of its obligation to furnish all material and labor necessary to carry out the provisions of this contract.
  - d. Rely entirely upon its own judgment in making its proposal,
  - e. Include in its bid a sum sufficient to cover all items required by the contract including all labor, materials, and services necessary to complete this project.

#### A. ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATIONS

No interpretation of the meaning of the plans, specifications, or other pre-bid documents will be made to any bidder verbally. Every request for such interpretation should be in writing addressed to the Engineer, and to be given consideration, must be received at least 7 days prior to date fixed for opening of bids. Any and all such interpretations and any supplemental instructions will be in the form of written addenda to the specifications.

Failure of any bidder to receive addenda shall not relieve any such bidder from any obligation under its bid as submitted. All addenda so issued shall become part of the contract documents. Approval of requested substitutions or proposed equals will be by Addenda as above.

## C. PRODUCT SUBSTITUTIONS:

- 1. Substitutions: Bids must be based upon the specific articles and materials named in the Drawings and Specification. Substitution may be made only under the following conditions:
  - a. Prior to Bid Opening: Not less than ten calendar days prior to bid opening, prime bidders may submit to the Engineer written requests for approval of articles or materials, accompanied by complete descriptions, technical data and samples. Approval or rejection of the proposed substitutions will be made by addenda issued to all bidders.
- 2. After Award of Contract: Approval of substitution will be made only in exceptional cases where the Contractor submits satisfactory evidence to the Engineer that through no fault of its own, specified or otherwise approved items cannot be obtained in time to avoid delay to the work. Approval in such cases shall conform to the other requirements above.

#### D. INTERPRETATIONS AND CORRECTIONS TO BIDDING DOCUMENTS

Bidders and Sub-bidders shall promptly notify the Engineer of any ambiguity, inconsistency or error which they may discover upon examination of the Bidding Documents or of the site and local conditions. Bidders and Sub-bidders requiring clarification or interpretation of the Bidding Documents shall make a written request

which shall reach the Engineer at least three days prior to the date for receipt of Bids. Any interpretation, correction or change of the Bidding Documents made in any other manner will not be binding, and Bidders shall not rely upon such interpretations, corrections and changes.

#### E. FORM OF BID

A Bid Form is attached to these Drawings and Specifications. Make Bid according to Form. Fill in all spaces. Bids shall not contain any recapitulation of work done. State bid in numerical numbers, if illegible provide long handwritten numbers. Completed form must be without interlineation, alteration or erasure. Signatures must be in longhand.

#### F. POWER OF ATTORNEY

Attorneys-in-fact who sign bid bonds or contract bonds must file with each bond a certified and effectively dated copy of the power of attorney.

#### G. ORAL AND TELEGRAPHIC BIDS

Oral and telephonic modifications of bids cannot be considered.

#### H. SUBMISSION OF BID

Enclose bid and bid bond in opaque sealed envelope. Address to: Skagit County Parks Department. Particulars are in the Invitation to Bid. Deliver in person or by post. Bidder is responsible for delivery of bid at or before the time set for bid opening. The Owner may consider informal any bid not prepared and submitted in accordance with the provisions hereof and may waive any informalities or reject any and all bids. The Owner reserves the right to reject any bid of the evidence submitted by, or investigation of, such bidder fails to satisfy the Owner that such bidder is properly qualified to carry out the obligation of the contract and to complete the work contemplated therein. Conditional bids will not be accepted.

#### I. BID BOND

Each bidder agrees to furnish a bid bond AIA Document A310 or a certified check amounting to five percent (5%) of the bid, included with its proposal. When left in escrow with the Owner its amount or penalty sum is the measure of damages which the Owner will sustain by the failure of the bidder to execute the Form of Agreement and furnish a 100 percent Performance and Payment Bond, AIA Document A312, and if the bidder fails to deliver said documents within 10 days after written notice, notice of the award of the contract to him, then the check shall become the property of the Owner or the Bid Bond shall remain in full effect. But if the bid is not accepted within 45 days after the time set for opening bids, or if the bidder delivers said contract and the bonds, then the check shall be returned to him or the bid bond shall become void. The right is reserved to hold the bid bonds of the three lowest bidders until the award of the contract or for a period of 45 days, whichever is the shorter time. Bids of all unsuccessful bidders will be returned as soon as feasible after the bid opening.

#### J. WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

Any bidder may withdraw its bid either personally or by written request at any time prior to the hour set for the bid opening. No bid may be withdrawn or modified after the time set for opening unless and until the award of the contract is delayed for period exceeding 45 days.

#### K. TIME OF COMPLETION

Bidder must agree to Substantially Complete the Work by February 14, 2025, and to Finally Complete the Work within 30 consecutive calendar days thereafter. Weather days will be allowed as mutually agreed upon between the Owner and the Contractor.

#### L. SECURITY FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE

Simultaneously with its delivery of the executed contract, the Contractor shall furnish a surety bond or bonds as security for faithful performance of the Contract and for payment of all persons performing labor under the Contract and furnishing material or services in connection with the Contract as described in the Contract Documents. The surety on such bond or bonds shall be a duly authorized surety company satisfactory to the Owner, registered in the State of Washington, Insurance Commissioners Office. List Bonding Agent and address of same.

#### M. CONTRACTOR'S AND SUBCONTRACTOR'S PUBLIC LIABILITY

Vehicle Liability and Property Damage Insurance shall be furnished as required by the Supplementary General Conditions.

#### N. BUILDER'S RISK INSURANCE

Property Damage Insurance shall be as required by the Supplementary General Conditions.

## O. LAWS AND REGULATIONS, PREVAILING WAGES

The Bidder's attention is directed to the fact that all applicable State laws, municipal ordinances, and rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over construction of the project shall apply to the Contract throughout, and they shall be deemed to be included in the Contract the same as though written out in full therein. All persons or firms performing on public service or construction contracts shall submit to the State, in advance of the work of all trades, a completed Form SF 9882, "Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages," accompanied by the filing fees for each Statement (Statements are available at Offices of Washington State Department of Labor and Industries). Refer to Supplementary General Conditions for Prevailing Wage information applicable to this project required by law.

#### P. QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS

 The Engineer and/or the Owner may make such investigations as necessary to determine the ability of a Bidder to perform the work, and the Bidder shall furnish all such information and date as may be requested prior to bidding. The Owner reserves the right to reject any bid if the evidence submitted by, or if investigation of, such Bidder fails to satisfy the Owner that such Bidder is properly qualified to perform the obligations of the Contract and to complete the work contemplated therein. Conditional Bids will not be accepted. Refer to Section 00 15 30 Bidders Responsibility Criteria for documents to be submitted with bid and/or after bid opening date.

- 2. To enable the Owner to evaluate the competency and financial responsibility of a Contractor, when requested by the Owner, furnish the following information, which shall be sworn to under oath by him or by a properly authorized representative of the Bidder.
  - a. The address and description of the Bidder's plan and place of business.
  - b. The name and/or Articles of Co-Partnership or Incorporation.
  - c. Itemized list of equipment available for use on the project.
  - d. A certified or authenticated financial statement, dated within thirty (30) days prior to the opening of bids. The Owner may require that any items of such statements be further verified.
  - e. A list of present contracts, including dollar values, percentage of completion and the names of all Owners involved.
  - f. A statement regarding any past, present and pending litigation with an Owner.
  - g. Such additional information as may be required that will satisfy the Owner that the Bidder is adequately prepared, in technical experience or otherwise, to fulfill the contract.
  - h. Sufficient documentation to ensure that the Contractor is in compliance with the current Fair Employment Practice requirements of the Owner.

#### Q. POST-BID INFORMATION

- 1. The successful bidder shall submit to the Engineer, within ten calendar days of the notifications of selection for award of the Contract, the following:
  - a. Statement of Cost for each major item of work or subcontract included in the Bid, equaling the total Contract award, and such other data as are required by the General Conditions, including Article 5.2.

#### R. LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The bidders attention is directed to the fact that all applicable State laws, municipal ordinances, and rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over construction of the project shall apply to the Contract throughout, and they shall be deemed to be included in the Contract the same as though written out in full therein. Bidders are advised that if successful, they will be required to meet all applicable federal, state, and local laws pertaining to permits, licenses, fees and taxes, as well as laws pertaining to employment and wages. Bidders are responsible for determining the extent and applicability of such laws.

#### S. DEFINITIONS

1. Bid Documents include the Instructions to Bidders, the Bid Form, and the contract Documents, including any Addenda.

- Contract Documents consist of the Owner-contractor Agreement, the Conditions
  of the Contract (General, Supplementary, and other Conditions), the Drawings,
  the Specifications, and all Addenda issued prior to and all Modifications issued
  after the execution of the Contract.
- 3. Addenda are written or graphic instruments issued prior to the execution of the contract which modify or interpret the Bidding Documents, including the drawings and specifications, by addition, deletion, clarification, or correction. Addenda issued prior to the receipt of Bids will be mailed, faxed, or delivered to each person or firm recorded by the Engineer as having received the Bid Documents.

# T. AWARD OF THE CONTRACT(S)/REJECTION OF BIDS

- The Contract will be awarded to the responsible bidder(s) submitting the lowest proposal complying with the condition of the Advertisement for Bid and these contract documents provided the bid is reasonable and in the best interest of Skagit County. Items in this bid, approved for contract by the Board of Commissioners, shall be awarded by Skagit County.
- 2. The County reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any informality in bids received whenever such rejection or waiver is in the interest of the County. The County reserves the right to select all or individual alternate bid items whichever is determined to be in the best interest of the County.
- 3. The bidder to whom the award is made will be notified at the earliest practicable date.

#### U. DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS

- 1. Any one or more of the following causes may be considered sufficient for the disqualification of a Bidder and the rejection of its bid or bids:
  - a. Evidence of collusion among Bidders.
  - b. Lack of expertise as shown by past work, and judged from the standpoint of workmanship and performance history.
  - c. Uncompleted work under other contracts which, in the judgment of the county, might hinder or prevent the prompt completion of additional work if awarded.
  - d. Being in arrears on existing contracts, in litigation with an Owner, or having defaulted on a previous contract.
  - e. Contractor's naming oneself as a Subcontractor for which they have no expertise and working knowledge directly within the firm.

#### SECTION 00 41 00 - BID FORM

Bidder's	Firm Name:	Date:_, <u>2024</u>
Address:	:	_
Talanhan	a a Nia .	_
i elepnor	ne No.:	
TO:	Skagit County Parks and Recreation 1730 Continental Place Mount Vernon, WA 98273	
Gentlem	nen and Ladies:	
MILLER site and Undersig work ned	dersigned having carefully examined the Bid Docun STEELHEAD PARK" dated October 28, 2024 and hexamined the conditions affecting the Work, hereby gned proposes to furnish all labor, materials, service cessary for the completion of the Work described a Stipulated Sum for each bid item:	aving had the opportunity to visit the submits the following proposal. The and incidentals, and to perform all
*BASE (Includes	BID s BASE BID and ALLOWANCE)	
(Dlagge	print dollar amount in words in space above for base bid r	DOLLARS
(Please	print dollar amount in words in space above for base bid r	iot including sales tax.)

The County reserves the right to reject all bids for cause and to waive minor irregularities in the bidding.

(Please write dollar figure in space above not including sales tax.)

The County will award the bid to the lowest or best bid, taking into consideration price, and other factors that will contribute toward their exercising judgement to obtain the best value for the County.

#### ALLOWANCE

An allowance of \$10,000 for encountering unforeseen conditions such as utility conflicts or extensive utility reconnections beyond what is shown on the project drawings. The contract will be adjusted based on the difference between actual costs incurred and allowance.

#### **OVERHEAD AND PROFIT**

All bid proposals enumerated in this Bid Proposal Form include overhead, profit and all other expenses involved in the execution and completion of the work described in the Contract Documents.

#### **SALES TAX**

The Undersigned certifies that the above-named construction costs do not include Washington State and Local Sales Taxes applicable to Skagit County as applied to materials and labor which will become a permanent part of the Work. All other Sales and Use Taxes properly levied by the State of Washington and Local Agencies on labor, materials, and equipment utilized on a temporary basis shall be included in the proposed amounts.

#### **CONTRACT PROVISIONS**

If the Undersigned is notified of the acceptance of this proposal within 45 days from the date set for the opening thereof, or at any time thereafter before this proposal is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute a contract for the above Work for the above-named compensation in the required Form of Agreement containing the following provisions and to furnish the required bonds.

Construction window for this project is January 6, 2025, through February 14, 2025.
Work consists of erosion control, demolition, preparation of building pad, utility
reconnection and stub ups final utility hook ups, concrete sidewalk, coordination with
building supplier, prepare crane access route, continued erosion control maintenance
and measures, and surfacing restoration. All work must be substantially complete by
February 14, 2025

#### **BID GUARANTEE**

The Undersigned agrees that the check or bid bond accompanying this proposal which amount is not less than 5 percent of the bid proposed, is left in escrow with the Owner, that the amount of the check, or penal sum of the bond, is the measure of damages which the Owner will sustain by failure of the Undersigned to execute said Contract and furnish required bonds, and that if the Undersigned fails to deliver said documents within 10 days after receipt of notice of award to him, the check shall become the property of the Owner and the bond shall remain in full effect. If this proposal is not accepted within 45 days after the time set for the opening of bids, then the check shall be returned and the bond shall become void.

#### ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Receipt of Addenda	#	is/are hereby acknowledged.

#### NON-COLLUSION CERTIFICATE

The Undersigned, being duly sworn, deposes and says that the person, firm, associated, copartnership or corporation herein named, has not, either directly or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in the preparation and submission of this proposal to Skagit County for consideration in the award of the contract.

#### PREVAILING WAGES

The Undersigned hereby agrees to pay labor not less than the current prevailing rates of wages as determined by the State Bureau of Labor and Industries or less than hourly minimum rates of wages set forth in the Wage Rates for this Project.

Current prevailing wage rates are set forth in the Washington State Department of Labor & Industries website <a href="http://www.lni.wa.gov/">http://www.lni.wa.gov/</a> and are herein incorporated into this document by this reference.

Signature of Bidder
Title
Print Name
Email address
Name of Company
Address
Telephone Number
releptione riumber

State of Washington con Labor & Industries Indus Employment Security De State excise tax registrate Disqualified from bidding YesNO	trial Insurance Yes ept. # tion #	No 		_ UBI #
NOTE: If Bidder is a cogive full names and add	•	•	ation, or if Bidd	er is partnership
Subscribed and sworn to	before me this	day o	of	, 2024
	Notary Public in a of Washington Washington.			

#### **SECTION 00 43 30 - BID SECURITY FORM**

## PART 1 - GENERAL

- A. The "Bid Bond", AIA Document A310, 2017 Edition, is a part of these Contract Documents and is incorporated as fully as if bound herein.
- B. The Bid Bond may be obtained from the American Institute of Architects, 1735 New York Avenue NW, Washington D.C. 20006; Seattle Chapter, American Institute of Architects, 1911 First Avenue, Seattle, WA 98101; and Northwest Washington Chapter, American Institute of Architects, as follows:

NW AIA P.O. Box AB Bellingham, WA 98227 Telephone: 360-671-9555

C. Contractors may use their standard bid security form as acceptable substitution.

# **SECTION 00 45 70 - RETAINAGE INVESTMENT OPTION**

Contractor:	<u> </u>
Date:	
Pursuant to RCW 60.28.010, as amended, you mathis contract will be invested. Please complete a you fail to do so, the Owner will deposit funds in a the benefit of any interest earned. Select one of	and sign this form indicating your preference; if a Guarantee Deposit account, and you will miss
1 1. Savings Account: Money will be placed in be paid to you directly, rather than kept on d name:	n an interest bearing account. The interest will leposit. If you prefer a particular bank, state its
by you, and interest will be paid to you as it a	invest the funds in securities or bonds selected
<ol> <li>3. Guarantee Deposit: Retainage will be de No interest is payable to the Contractor.</li> </ol>	posited in a manner selected by the Owner.
receipt of Labor and Industries/Depart	s after final acceptance of the work, or following ment of Revenue clearance, whichever date is ork may be retained longer, due to its seasonal rly release in certain circumstances.
(Contractor's Signature)	_
Title	

#### **SECTION 00 52 00 - VENDOR SERVICES AGREEMENT**

Skagit County, through the Department of (hereinafter referred to as County) and (hereinafter referred to as Contractor), for and in consideration of the mutual benefits do hereby agree as follows:

- 1. Contractor will provide the following service/products at such time and in such me nner as described in "Exhibit A".
- 2. County will compensate Contractor a maximum of , which includes a applicable taxes and will be chargeable to GL expenditure code(s) # , and offers a assigned and appropriate.
- 3. The parties agree that Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee nor agent of Skagit County. Contractor hereby agrees not a make any representations to any third party, nor to allow such third party to remain under the misimpression that Contractor is an employee of Skagit County. All payments reade hereunder and all services performed shall be made and performed pursuant to this Agreement by the Contractor as an independent contractor. Contractor will define, incomnify and hold harmless the County, its officers, agents or employees from any loss or expense, including but not limited to settlements, judgments, sciotts accorneys' fees or costs incurred by reason of claims or demands because or breach of the provisions of this paragraph. Further the Contractor represents hat all employees and sub-contractors are covered under Industrial Insurance in compliance with R.C.W. Title 51.
- 4. Defense & Indemnity Agreer ien ...

The Contractor agrees to de endial indemnify and save harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers and engloyees, from and against all loss or expense, including but not limited to judgments, send mends, attorney's fees and costs by reason of any and all claims and demands upon the County, its elected or appointed officials or employees for damages because of personal and bodily injury, including death at any time resulting therefrom, sustained by any person or persons and on account of damage to property including loss of use the lof, whener such injury to persons or damage to property is due to the negligence of the Contractor, its subcontractors, its elected officers, employees or their agents except only such injury or damage as shall have been occasioned by the sole negligence of the County, its appointed or elected officials or employees. It is further proviced that no liability shall attach to the County by reason of entering into this contract, except as expressly provided herein.

5. This Contract shall commence on date of execution and continue until either party terminates by giving 30 days' notice in writing either personally delivered or mailed postage prepaid by certified mail, return receipt requested to the party's last known address, but in no event shall the contract continue for more than one year from date of execution.

- 6. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not transfer any interest in same without prior written County consent.
- 7. The Contractor will secure, at his own expense, all personnel required in performing said services under this Contract. Contractor shall be personally liable for applicable payroll, labor and industries premiums and all applicable taxes and hall hold County harmless therefrom.
- 8. The Contractor shall provide proof of insurance for general comprehencive "ability in the amount of \$1,000,000 to cover Contractor's activities during in a term of this Contract. Proof of insurance shall be in a form acceptable and a proved by the County. A certificate of insurance naming the County, its elected officials, and employees as additional insured's and naming the County as a certificate hold insurance shall accompany this Contract for signing. Thirty (30) days' written notice to the County of cancellation of the insurance policy is required. No contract shall form us till and unless a copy of the certificate of insurance, in the amount required, is attached be as set forth in "Exhibit". The contractors insurance shall be primary. In surance or self-insurance maintained by the County, its officers, officials, he had a proved to the contractors insurance and shall not a notificate to it.

# 9. Prevailing Wages:

Contractor and subcontractor shall submit a "Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages" prior to submitting first hoplication for payment. Each statement of intent to pay prevailing wages must be approved by the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries before it is submitted to the County. Unless otherwise authorized by the Department of Labor and Industries, each voucher claim submitted by a Contractor for payment on a project estimate shall state that the prevailing wages have been paid in accordance with the pre-filed statement or statements of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages on file with the public agency.

## 10. Termination to Public Convenience:

The Dunty may terminate the contract in whole or in part whenever the County determines, in its sole discretion that such termination is in the best interests of the County whenever the contract is terminated in accordance with this paragraph, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for actual work performed at unit contract prices for completed items of work. An equitable adjustment in the contract price for partially completed items of work will be made, but such adjustment shall not include provision for loss of anticipated profit on deleted or uncompleted work. Termination of this contract by the County at any time during the term, whether for default or convenience, shall not constitute a breach of contract by the County. If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated for payment under this contract for any future fiscal period, the County will not be obligated to make payments for services or amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal period. No penalty or expense shall accrue to the County in the event this provision applies.

# CONTRACTOR:

Signature & Title of Signatory (Date)	_
Print Name	
Title	
Mailing Address:	
Telephone No Fed. Tax ID # Contractor Lic. #.	

Budget & Finance Director

DATED this	day of	, 2024.
BOARD	OF COUNTY COMM	IISSIONERS SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON
		Peter Browning, Chair
		Lisa Janicki, Commissioner
Attest:		Ron Wesen, Commissioner
Clerk of the Boa	rd	For contracts under \$5,000: Authorization per Resolution R20030146
Recommended:		County Administrator
Department Hea	ad	
Approved as to f	form:	
Civil Deputy Pro	secuting Attorney	
Approved as to i	ndemnification:	
Risk Manager		
Approved as to b	budget:	

# EXHIBIT "A" SCOPE OF SERVICES



#### **EXHIBIT "B"**

#### PROOF OF INSURANCE

The Contractor shall provide proof of insurance for Commercial General Liability or Professional Liability in the amount of \$1,000,000.00 to cover Contractor's activities during the term of this Contract. Proof of insurance shall be in a form acceptable and approved by the County. Contractors insurance shall be primary.

The type of insurance required by this Agreement is marked below.

1) <u>Commercial General Liability Insurance</u>
 Certificate Holder – Skagit County

The Certificate must name the County as additional insured: Skagit County, its elected officials, officers and employees are named as additional insured.

Thirty (30) days written notice to the County of cancellation of the insurance policy.

2) Professional Liability
 Certificate Holder – Skagit County
 Thirty (30) days written notice to the County of cancellation of the insurance policy

NOTE: No contract shall form until and unless a copy of the Certificate of Insurance, properly completed and in the amount required, is attached hereto.

	□ 3	) <u>Insuranc</u>	e is waived	
Date:				
			Risk Manager	

#### **SECTION 00 60 00 - BONDS AND CERTIFICATES**

The bond and insurance requirements set forth on the following pages are required of the successful bidder.

#### 1.1 GENERAL:

In addition to the Bid Guarantee required in the advertisement, Skagit County requires the Contractor to furnish the following bonds and insurance. The inception date of the insurance coverage shall be the date the Contractor is ordered by Skagit County to proceed with the work and shall be maintained during the life of the Contract and for not less than one year thereafter.

# 1.2 EVIDENCE OF COMPLIANCE:

- A. <u>Performance, Labor and material Payment Bonds:</u> Submitted at time of execution of the Contract and attached thereto.
- B. <u>Insurance</u>: A Certificate of Insurance shall be filed with "Skagit County." This Certificate shall be reflective of all Insurance Coverage required by the County's contract documents. Any Certificate filed with the County found to be incomplete or not according to Form, will be returned as not satisfactory. Rejected Certificates shall be corrected as necessary and resubmitted to the county for approval. Certificates of Insurance and separate endorsement shall indicate the following to be Additional Named Insureds: Skagit County, it's officials, employees and agents.

Contractor's coverage shall be primary and non-contributory.

Certificates of Insurance shall indicate the following to be Additional Named Insureds: Skagit County, it's officials, employees and agents, and Freeland & Associates, Inc., shall be added as Additional Insured on the Certificate, and a separate endorsement shall be issued by the Company adding Skagit County, its officials, and employees and agents and Freeland & Associates, Inc.

In addition to the foregoing, the Certificate of Insurance must include a Cancellation Notification of not less than thirty (30) days. The Certificate should also contain the Contract Number and a "concise verbal definition" of the Contract to which the Certificate applies.

#### 1.3 INSURANCE GENERALLY:

The Contractor shall not commence work under this contract until he has obtained the insurance required hereunder and such insurance has been approved by the County. In like manner, the General Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until the subcontractor has submitted to the General Contractor a Certificate of Insurance reflective of the coverage required by Skagit County. Skagit County's approval of insurance shall not relieve or decrease the Contractor's liability hereunder. Each policy shall contain an endorsement stating that the insurance company will not, prior to the completion of the Work or any expiration date shown on the policy and certificate, whichever occurs first, terminate the policy or change any coverage therein without first

mailing, by registered mail, written notice of such action at least 30 days prior to the termination of change, to Skagit County.

#### 1.4 <u>CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE:</u>

The insurance required, by Skagit County, is as specified below and in the amounts indicated:

- A. <u>Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance:</u> All employees of the Contractor and subcontractors shall be insured under Washington State Industrial Insurance. Employees not subject to the State Act shall be insured under Employer's Liability with a \$1,000,000.00 limit of liability. A separate Certificate of Insurance shall be furnished to Skagit County of any of the Contractor's payroll is not reported to the Washington State Industrial Insurance. The contractor shall be responsible for confirming compliance of all subcontractors with the above requirements.
- B. Comprehensive General Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall obtain and retain Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability Insurance providing the following:
  - Additional Insured: Skagit County, Freeland & Associates, Inc. shall be named
    as additional insured for liability arising out of the work of this Contract as a result
    of the negligence, real or alleged, on the part of the contractor and his
    subcontractors.
  - 2. Limits of Liability: Limits shall equal or exceed the combination or primary and excess limits for bodily injury and property damage liability of \$1,000,000.00 annual aggregate.
  - 3. Coverage: Coverage shall be as is usual to the practice of the Insurance Industry; included but not limited to the following coverage's:
    - a. Premises and Operations including Explosion, Collapse and Underground Liability:
    - b. Products and completed Operations:
    - c. Owners and Contractors Protective Liability;
    - d. Broad form Property Damage Liability;
    - e. Blanket Contractual Liability;
    - f. Personal Injury Liability, including coverage's A, B, and C;
    - g. Employers "Stop-Gap" Liability;
    - h. Automobile Liability for All Owned, Non-Owned, Hired Leased or Borrowed Vehicles:
    - Un-insured and Under-insured Motorist Coverage should also be in effect.
  - 4. Products and Completed Operations Insurance: This coverage must be maintained for a period of not less than two years after the final acceptance of the work performed.

#### 1.5 PROPERTY INSURANCE:

Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall purchase and maintain property insurance upon the entire Work at the site to 115 percent of the full value thereof. This insurance shall include the interests of Skagit County, the Contractor and all subcontractors in the Work being performed. The coverage should be written on a "Builder's Risk" basis. Depending on the nature and size of the contract, the Contractor may be required to purchase Flood and Earthquake Coverage. All materials which are to be made part of the construction project are to be so insured

while being stored at or off the job site(s) and/or while being transported to and from the job site(s). Insurance against loss of tools, equipment, construction, or otherwise not to be incorporated into the Work is the responsibility of the Contractor and the cost of such insurance shall not be included in the cost of insurance required herein before.

- A. <u>Endorsements:</u> The policy shall be specifically endorsed as follows:
  - Payments: It is agreed that loss payments under the policy shall be made payable to Skagit County as trustee for each of the interests named in the policy.
- B. <u>Waiver</u>: Skagit County and the contractor waive all rights against (1) each other and the subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents and employees each of the other, and (2) the Owner for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by insurance obtained pursuant to this Article or any other property insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance held by Skagit County, as trustee.

#### 1.6 INDEMNIFICATION BY PROVIDER

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Provider agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the County and its departments, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and volunteers, harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to court costs, attorney's fees and alternative dispute resolution costs, for any personal injury, for any bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and for any damage to or destruction of any property (including the loss of use resulting therefrom) which 1) are caused in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, of the Provider, its employees, agents or volunteers or Provider's subcontractors and their employees, agents or volunteers; or 2) are directly or indirectly arising out of, resulting from , or in connection with performance of this Agreement; or 3) are based upon the Provider's or its subcontractors' use of, presence upon or proximity to the property of the County. This indemnification obligation of the Provider shall not apply in the limited circumstance where the claim, damage, loss or expense is caused by the sole negligence of the County. This indemnification obligation of the Provider shall not be limited in any way by the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act, RCW Title 51, or by application of any other workmen's compensation act, disability benefit act or other employee benefit act, and the Provider hereby expressly waives any immunity afforded by such acts. The foregoing indemnification obligations of the Provider are a material inducement to County to enter into this Agreement, are reflected in the Provider's compensation, and have been mutually negotiated by the parties.

Participation by County - No Waiver. The County reserves the right, but not the obligation, to participate in the defense of any claim, damages, losses or expenses and such participation shall not constitute a waiver of Provider's indemnity obligations under this Agreement.

Survival of Provider's Indemnity Obligations. The Provider agrees all Provider's

indemnity obligations shall survive the completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Indemnity by Subcontractors. In the event the Provider enters into subcontracts to the extent allowed under this Agreement, the Provider's subcontractors shall indemnify the County on a basis equal to or exceeding Provider's indemnity obligations to the County.

#### 1.7 <u>BONDS</u>

A. <u>Performance and Payment Bonds:</u> Furnish surety bond in the form of AIA Document A312 in an amount equal to 100 percent of the Contract Sum covering faithful performance of the work and payment of labor and materials. Furnish bonds issued by a bonding company licensed to transact business in the locality of the Work and approved by the Owner.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### **SECTION 00 61 40 - PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND**

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

- A. The "Performance Bond and Payment Bond", AIA Document A312, 2017 Edition, is a part of these Contract Documents and is incorporated as fully as if bound herein.
- B. The Performance Bond and Payment Bond may be obtained from the American Institute of Architects, 1735 New York Avenue NW, Washington D.C. 20006; Seattle Chapter, American Institute of Architects, 1911 First Avenue, Seattle, WA 98101; and Northwest Washington Chapter, American Institute of Architects as follows:

NW A.I.A. P.O. Box AB Bellingham, WA 98227 Telephone: 360-671-9555

**END OF SECTION** 

#### **SECTION 00 62 30 - CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE**

Certificates of Insurance Requirements:

- 1. Certificate shall be issued on an ACORD Form, or a form that meets with Skagit County's approval.
- 2. The Insuring Company shall have a Best Rating of A+, or meet with Skagit County's approval.
- 3. The minimum acceptable General Liability Limit shall be \$1,000,000 Aggregate/\$1,000,000 Occurrence. Coverage shall include owners & Contractors Protective Liability and Employers Liability (Stop-Gap) Coverage. Umbrella \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$1,000,000 aggregate.
  - Coverage shall be written on an "Occurrence" Basis, or meet with Skagit County's approval.
- 4. Automobile Coverage shall include "Any Auto" or "Scheduled Autos" and shall include Hired and Non-Owned Auto Liability.
  - The minimum acceptable Automobile Liability Limit shall be \$1,000,000.
- 5. Skagit County, it's Commissioners and Employees, and Freeland & Associates, shall be added as Additional Insured on the Certificate, and a separate endorsement shall be issued by the Company adding Skagit County, it's Commissioners and Employees, and Freeland & Associates as Additional Insured to the General Liability and Automobile Policy and the Umbrellas Excess Policy, where required to meet minimum limits outlined in #3 and #4 above.
- Indemnification by Provider. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Provider agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the County and its departments, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and volunteers, harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to court costs, attorney's fees and alternative dispute resolution costs, for any personal injury, for any bodily injury, sickness, or death and for any damage to or destruction of any property (including the disease loss of use resulting therefrom) which 1) are caused in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, of the Provider, its employees, agents or volunteers or Provider's subcontractors and their employees, agents or volunteers; or 2) are directly or indirectly arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with performance of this Agreement; or 3) are based upon the Provider's or its subcontractors' use of, presence the property of the County. This indemnification obligation of the upon or proximity to Provider shall not apply in the limited circumstance where the claim, damage, loss or expense is caused by the sole negligence of the County. This indemnification obligation of the Provider shall not be limited in any way by the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act, RCW Title 51, or by application of any other workmen's compensation act, disability benefit act or other employee benefit act, and the Provider hereby expressly waives any immunity afforded by such acts. The foregoing indemnification obligations of the Provider are a material inducement to County to enter into this Agreement, are reflected in the Provider's compensation, and have been mutually negotiated by the parties.

Participation by County - No Waiver. The County reserves the right, but not the obligation, to participate in the defense of any claim, damages, losses or expenses and such participation shall not constitute a waiver of Provider's indemnity obligations under this Agreement.

Survival of Provider's Indemnity Obligations. The Provider agrees all Provider's indemnity obligations shall survive the completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Indemnity by Subcontractors. In the event the Provider enters into subcontracts to the extent allowed under this Agreement, the Provider's subcontractors shall indemnify the County on a basis equal to or exceeding Provider's indemnity obligations to the County.

7. The "Cancellation" Block shall be altered to include the wording "Should any of the above described policies be canceled or <u>materially reduced</u> before expiration date thereof, the issuing company will mail 30 days written notice to the certificate holder named to the left."

If there are any questions regarding these requirements please contact Skagit County's Risk Manager, Mary Houben at 360-416-1380.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### **SECTION 00 82 50 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS**

- 1. A non-mandatory pre-bid conference for prospective bidders will be held on site Monday, November 4, 2024. The meeting will take place at 10:00 a.m. at the project site address 52804 Rockport Park Road, Rockport, Howard Miller Steelhead Park.
- 2. The Owner has procured the following permits from Skagit County:
  - Building Permit BP24-0466

All Skagit County permit conditions must be followed. It is the contractor's responsibility to meet the conditions of the permit and coordinate any required inspections and testing. Skagit County Parks will hire a testing agency for compaction. Contractor to perform plumbing test during inspection.

- 3. The Contractor shall submit all work schedules to the Engineer/Owner for review and approval prior to starting work. Access, staging areas, and security fences must be coordinated with owner and other construction projects in the area.
- 4. The contractor shall maintain a safe and reasonable route of travel for the public through the project site. Contractor shall take necessary safety precautions to protect the public during construction. The use of barricades, safety tape, temporary structures or other means necessary to protect the public shall be employed. The Contractor shall notify the Owner of scheduled work.
- 5. Requests for product substitutions prior to bidding will be considered only if they are received a minimum of seven (7) calendar days before the time specified for receipt of bid proposals. If no substitutions are approved prior to bid, bidders are required to bid and supply only specified products.
- 6. Access to the work site for the project will be provided to the Contractor.

#### A. ACCESS TO WORK

The Owner's designated project Coordinator shall have full access to the site at all times.

#### B. PREVAILING WAGES

Contractor and subcontractors shall submit a "Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages" prior to submitting first application for payment. Each statement of intent to pay prevailing wages must be approved by the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries before it is submitted to the County. Unless otherwise authorized by the Department of labor and Industries, each voucher claim submitted by a Contractor for payment on a project estimate shall state that the prevailing wages have been paid in accordance with the pre- filed statement or statements of Intent to Pay prevailing Wages on file with the public agency.

#### C. AFFIDAVIT OF WAGES PAID

Following the final acceptance of a Public Works project, the Contractor and each and every subcontractor shall submit "Affidavit of Wages Paid" before the funds retained according to the provisions of RCW 60.28.010 are released to the Contractor. Each Affidavit of Wages Paid must be certified by the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries before it is submitted.

#### D. SUBMITTAL FEES

"Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages" and "Affidavit of Wages Paid" must be submitted to the Industrial Statistician of the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries accompanied by current rate for each individual form. This fee is to be paid by the Contractor. All bidders are advised to consider these charges when tabulating their bids.

#### E. RETAINED PERCENTAGE

The Contractor shall comply with the latest edition of RCW Chapter 39.

#### F. CONTRACTOR USE OF PREMISES

General: During the entire construction period the Contractor shall have the exclusive use of the designated portion of the premises for construction operations. The Contractor shall limit his use of the premises to the work indicated. Confine operations at the site to the areas permitted. Portions of the site beyond areas on which work is indicated are not to be disturbed. Maintain the existing building in a safe and weather tight condition throughout the construction operations. Take all precautions necessary to protect the building during the construction period.

#### G. DESCRIPTIONS OF SUPERVISORY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum administrative and supervisory requirements necessary for coordination of work on the project include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

- 1. Coordination and meetings
- 2. Administrative and supervisory personnel
- Special Reports
- 4. General installation provisions
- 5. Cleaning and protection

#### H. COORDINATION AND MEETINGS

Coordination Meetings: Hold project coordination meetings at regularly scheduled times convenient for all parties involved. These meetings are in addition to specific meetings held for other purposes, such as regular project meetings and special pre-installation meetings. Request representation at each meeting by every party currently involved in coordination or planning for the work of the entire project. Conduct meetings in a manner which will resolve coordination problems. Record results of the meeting and distribute copies to everyone in attendance and to others affected by decisions or actions resulting from each meeting. At Contractor's option, monthly coordination meetings can be held integrally with monthly progress meetings.

#### I. ADMINISTRATIVE AND SUPERVISORY PERSONNEL

General: Provide a General Superintendent and such other administrative and supervisory personnel as are required for performance of the work throughout the project time.

Submittal of Staff and Subcontractor Names, Duties: Within fifteen days of Notice to Proceed, submit a listing of Contractor's principal staff assignments, consultants and subcontractors, naming persons and listing their addresses and telephone numbers.

#### J. LIMITATIONS OF USE OF THE SITE

General: Limitations on site usage as well as specific requirements that impact site utilization are indicated on the drawings and by other contract documents. In addition to these limitations and requirements administer allocation of available space equitable among entities needing both access and space so as to produce the best overall efficiency in performance of the total work of the project.

Schedule deliveries to as to minimize space and time requirements for storage of materials and equipment on site. Contractor shall have materials delivered to its own place of business, or shall have personnel at the site to receive such items. Deliveries will not be received or signed for by the Owner.

#### K. SPECIAL REPORTS

General: Submit special reports directly to the Owner within one day of an occurrence. Submit a copy of the report to the Engineer and other entities that are affected by the occurrence.

Reporting Unusual Events: When an event of an unusual and significant nature occurs at the site, prepare and submit a special report. List chain of events, persons participating, response by the Contractor's personnel, and evaluation of the results or effects and similar pertinent information.

Reporting Accidents: Prepare and submit reports of significant accidents, at site and anywhere else work is in progress. Record and document data and actions. For this purpose, a significant accident is defined to include events where personal injury is sustained, or property loss of substance is sustained, or where the event posed a significant threat of loss or personal injury.

#### L. GENERAL INSTALLATION PROVISIONS

Pre-Installation Conferences: Hold a pre-installation meeting at the project site well before installation of each unit of work which requires coordination with other work. Installer and representatives of the manufacturers and fabrication who are involved in or affected by that unit or work, and with its coordination or integration with other work that has preceded or will follow shall attend this meeting.

Advise the Engineer of scheduled meeting dates. At each meeting review progress of other work and preparation for the particular work under consideration including specific requirements for the following:

- 1. Contract documents.
- 2. Related change orders.
- Deliveries.
- 4. Shop Drawings, product data and samples.
- 5. Possible conflicts and compatibility problems.
- 6. Time schedules.

- 7. Weather limitations.
- 8. Manufacturer's recommendations.
- 9. Compatibility of materials.
- 10. Acceptability of substrates.
- 11. Temporary facilities.
- 12. Space and access limitations.

#### M. PROGRESS SCHEDULE AND REPORTS

General: Within fifteen days of date established for "Commencement of the Work" submit a comprehensive bar chart type progress schedule indicating a time bar for each significant category or unit of work to be performed at the site. Arrange schedule to indicate required sequencing of units, and to show time allowance for submittals, inspections and similar time margins.

Show critical submittal dates related to each time bar, or prepare separate coordinated listing of critical submittal dates.

Submittal: Following initial revision of schedule after Engineers review, print and distribute schedule to entities with a need-to-know responsibility, including two copies to Engineer. Post in temporary office space. Review at intervals matching payment request, and redistribute/re-post.

#### N. MEETINGS AND REPORTING

Project Meetings: conduct general progress and coordination meetings at least once each week, attended by a representative of each primary entity engaged for performance of work. Record discussions and decisions, and distribute copies to those attending and others affected including Engineer. Schedule meetings to coordinate with preparation of payment requests.

#### O. SCHEDULE OF VALUES

Prepare a schedule of values to show breakdown of Contract Sum corresponding with payment request breakdown, minimum of 30 items, and progress schedule line items. Show dollar value and percent of total for each unit of work scheduled. Submit not less than seven days prior to first payment request, and review each time schedule is affected by change order or other value revision (by Contractor). Include a Punch list/Closeout line item in a minimum bid quantity of 5% of the total bid.

#### P. PAYMENT REQUESTS

Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Owner by the Contractor and Certificates for Payment issues, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sums to the Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents for the period ending the twenty-fifth (25) day of the month as follows:

1. The Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment for the preceding month by the first day of each month. The Owner shall make progress payments to the Contractor not later than thirty (30) days following the receipt of the Application for Payment from the Contractor.

2. The Owner shall pay to the Contractor, on each application for Payment, materials, equipment incorporated in the Work and to materials and equipment suitably stored at the site or at some other location agreed upon in writing, for the period covered by the application for Payment, less the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owners.

The Owner will not be liable for interest or penalties charged by the Contractor on any Payments delayed due to Contractor's failure to inform himself of the Owner's normal procedures or to submit payment requests timely.

The Contract Sum and any agreed variations thereof, shall include all Federal, State and Local taxes imposed by laws, and properly chargeable to the project except the State of Washington Sales Tax. Washington State and Local Sales Taxes as applied to the materials and labor or equipment which becomes part of the Work will be paid by the Owner; a proportionate amount of the tax will be added to each payment voucher issued to the Contractor. The Contractor shall pay all other sales, consumer, use and similar taxes properly levied by Washington State and Local Agencies for the Work or portions thereof provided by the Contractor which are legally enacted at the time bids are received, whether or not yet effective. For payment requests, use AIA Form G702, or equivalent, fully completed, executed and notarized. Submit the forms in triplicate, including attachment of waivers and similar documentation with one copy prior to the initial payment request, submit:

- 1. List of principal subcontractors and suppliers, including contact persons and their addresses and telephone numbers.
- 2. List of principal staff assignments with addresses and telephone numbers.
- 3. Schedule of values.
- 4. Progress schedule and first progress report.

Following issuance by Owner of Certificate of Substantial completion, Contractor may submit special payment request, provided the following have been completed:

- 1. Obtain permits, certificates of inspection and other approval and releases by governing authorities, required for Owner's operational/maintenance personnel.
- 2. complete final cleaning of work.
- 3. Submit record documents.
- 4. Submit listing of work to be completed before final acceptance.

Following completion of the following requirements, final payment request may be submitted:

- 1. Complete work listed as incomplete at time of substantial completion, or otherwise assure Owner of subsequent completion of individual incomplete items.
- 2. Settle liens and other claims, or assure Owner of subsequent settlement.
- 3. Submit proof of payment on fees, taxes and similar obligations.
- 4. Transfer operational, access, security and similar provisions to Owner; and remove temporary facilities, tools and similar items.
- 5. Affidavits of Wages Paid from all entities who worked at the site.
- 6. Completion of requirements specified in "Project Closeout" section.
- 7. Obtain consent of surety for final payment.

8. Provide evidence of full payment of all industrial insurance premiums as required by RCW 51.12.050 and/or RCW 51.12.070.

Payments will be mailed to Contractor's place of business. Payments cannot be picked up personally.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### SECTION 00 83 00 - DEPARTMENT OF LABOR WAGE RATES

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 SUMMARY

- A. This schedule of prevailing wage rates for the locality or localities of the Work, as described by the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries, are available on the Washington State Department of Labor & Industries website <a href="http://www.lni.wa.gov/">http://www.lni.wa.gov/</a>. Contractor remains solely responsible for verifying that the rates used are accurate, current, and inclusive for all parts of this Work. Contractor is responsible for notifying the Architect, in writing, of any problems, errors, or discrepancies in this Section no later than 7 working days prior to Bid opening. Any off-site prefabrication may also require prevailing wages and the Contractor should contact the Department of Labor and Industries to ascertain those rates.
- B. Contractor to provide the "Notice of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wage Rates", and "Affidavits of Wages Paid" as required by RCW 39.04, 39.12, 43.19, and 49.28 as amended. State approved "Notice of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wage Rates" and "Affidavits of Wages Paid" forms or State assigned numbers shall be sent directly to the owner. The rules and regulations of the Department of Labor and Industries and the schedule of prevailing wage rates for the locality or localities where this Contract will be performed as determined by the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries, are by reference made a part of this Contract as though fully set forth herein.

Current prevailing wage data are available at the:

ADDRESS: Department of Labor and Industries

Prevailing Wage Section

P.O. Box 44540

Olympia, Washington 98504-4540

Current prevailing wage rates are set forth in the Washington State Department of Labor & Industries website <a href="http://www.lni.wa.gov/">http://www.lni.wa.gov/</a> and are herein incorporated into this document by this reference.

The General Contractor and his sub-contractors are to pay for all filing fees for Statements of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and Affidavits at \$25.00 each document submitted. Pay for any change in rate during the course of construction.

Submit forms to: Department of Labor and Industries

**Prevailing Wage Section** 

P.O. Box 44540

Olympia, Washington 98504-4540

**END OF SECTION** 



# Skagit County Planning & Development Services

1800 Continental Place ◆ Mount Vernon, WA 98273

360-416-1320 ◆ pds@co.skagit.wa.us ◆ www.skagitcounty.net/planning

Building Permit #: BP24-0466 Status: Issued

Issue date: October 03, 2024 Expire date: October 03, 2027

Renewal Expire date:

Project Description: New 4 bathroom prefab CXT structure to replace E bathroom

Parcel No: P44693

Job address: 52888 ROCKPORT PARK ROAD ROCK

**Applicant:** SKAGIT COUNTY PARKS

1730 CONTINENTAL PL

MOUNT VERNON WA JOSEPH SHEA 98273

Owner: SKAGIT COUNTY

1800 CONTINENTAL PL

MOUNT VERNON WA 98273

**Contractor:** Applicant

n

**Zoning:** Rural Vill. Resident

Setbacks: Front: 35 Side(s): 8 Rear: 25

**Setback Comments:** 

Valuation:

Occupancy Type Factor Sq Feet Valuation

Totals... \$235,106.00\*

"Construction or work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection by the building official and such construction or work shall remain accessible and exposed for inspection purposes until approved." IBC 109.1 "The final inspection shall be made after all work required by the building permit is completed." IBC 109.5. This permit does not grant any right to trespass on another's property. This permit will expire three years from the date of issuance, unless extended or renewed per SCC 15.04.030(1)(d).

This document was issued electronically to the owner or agent authorized at the above location. In order for this permit to be finaled all additional requirements must be met.

Additional requirements:1 No item or element of construction shall be covered or concealed where inspections are required, before requesting such inspection and receiving approval from the building inspector. Inspections will be performed according to the current inspection schedule, except holidays and other days of office closure. Due to limited resources, requests for inspections at specific days, times or periods of time (such as a.m. or p.m.) will be reviewed daily but cannot be guaranteed and shall not reduce the requirement for inspection. If the construction is not ready for inspection at the time of building inspector arrival, re-inspection

must be requested for the next, or other, day.

- 2 It is illegal to burn construction or demolition debris.
  See the Outdoor Burning pamphlet included in your packet.
- 3 Any fill that will support a building requires proof of 90% compaction by an approved testing agency.
- 4 Drainage plan does not meet design review thresholds, and has NOT been reviewed. Compliance with all applicable rules and regulations is still required.
- 5 This project shall comply with all requirements of Skagit County Code 14.32.060 Erosion and Sediment Control.
- 6 All runoff from impervious surfaces and roof & footing drains shall be directed so as not to adversely affect adjacent properties.
- 7 Adjacent properties, roads, conveyances and water bodies shall be protected from sediment deposition by use of appropriate measures.
- 8 All soils exposed during construction must be seeded, planted, landscaped or provided with approved erosion and sedimentation control measures AT, OR PRIOR TO, the final inspection or approval for occupancy. Requests concerning alternatives or exemptions should be directed to a stormwater review technician at Skagit County Planning & Development Services. 360.416.1320

### Permit #: BP24-0466

**Applicant:** SKAGIT COUNTY PARKS 1730 CONTINENTAL PL

MOUNT VERNON WA JOSEPH SHEA

#### Assessor ID number and legal description:

350926-0-002-0008

(2.2800 ac) TR IN LOT 1

#### Fee Summary:

Description	Tot Fee	Paid
BCAC	25.00	25.00
Building Permits	2,105.53	2,105.53
Stormwater Review	61.44	61.44
Plan Check Fee/Deposit	1,368.59	1,368.59

Total fees: \$3,560.56
Total payments: \$3,560.56
Balance due: \$0.00

## Skagit County Planning & Development Services Commercial Inspection Record

**Inspection Request Line: 360-416-1330** 

Office: 360-416-1320

Permit Number: **BP24-0466** Owner: **SKAGIT COUNTY** 

New 4 bathroom prefab CXT structure to Contractor

replace E bathroom

Contractor: **Applicant** 

Site Address: 52888 ROCKPORT PARK ROAD ROCK

	Approved	Date	steel covered without inspection	Approved	Date
Foundation			Insulation		
Address and access			Floors		
Location on property			Walls		
Floodplain requirements			Ceiling		
Footings			Sprinkler tenting		
Walls			Penetration protection		
Erosion Control			Drywall Nailing		
Plumbing			Occupancy Requirements		;
Below-grade pipes,ducts					
Waste & drains				Approved	Date
Water distribution			Fire Marshal (416-1841)		
Sewer connection			Alarms		
Mechanical			Fire suppression systems		
Fuel gas piping			Sprinkler systems		
Ducts & vents			Fire extinguishers		
Htg & Cooling			Fire Marshal Final		
Equipment			2		
Range hoods			<b>Public Works</b> (416-1400)		
Masonry			Grading permit #		
Walls, veneers, stucco			Drainage/LID work		
Reinforcement			Access		
-			Public Works final		
Shearwalls			<b>Health Dept.</b> (416-1555)		
Special connectors			Mt. Vernon (UGA only)		
Sheathing nailing			Parking		
Framing			Landscaping		
FEMA elevation			Conditions		
certificate					

Framing			Final Inspection		
Special Inspect. reports					
U.B.C. Section 109.1: No but	ilding or str	ucture shall	be used or occupied unti	l final approval ha	as been
	grant	ed by the B	Puilding Official.		
\\Admntmv2\Planning\shared\Forms 2005 Cor	tinental\Building	\Inspection\Comr	nercial inspection.pds.doc Last	printed February 4, 2000	2:12 PM

#### Additional requirements for permit BP24-0466

**Cond: INSPECTION** 

No item or element of construction shall be covered or concealed where inspections are required, before requesting such inspection and receiving approval from the building inspector. Inspections will be performed according to the current inspection schedule, except holidays and other days of office closure. Due to limited resources, requests for inspections at specific days, times or periods of time (such as a.m. or p.m.) will be reviewed daily but cannot be guaranteed and shall not reduce the requirement for inspection. If the construction is not ready for inspection at the time of building inspector arrival, re-inspection must be requested for the next, or other, day.

**Cond: BURN** 

It is illegal to burn construction or demolition debris. See the Outdoor Burning pamphlet included in your packet.

**Cond: COMPACTION** 

Any fill that will support a building requires proof of 90% compaction by an approved testing agency.

**Cond: DRNGEPLAN** 

Drainage plan does not meet design review thresholds, and has NOT been reviewed. Compliance with all applicable rules and regulations is still required.

Cond: PW-1

This project shall comply with all requirements of Skagit County Code 14.32.060 Erosion and Sediment Control.

Cond: PW-2

All runoff from impervious surfaces and roof & footing drains shall be directed so as not to adversely affect adjacent properties.

**Cond: SEDIMENT** 

Adjacent properties, roads, conveyances and water bodies shall be protected from sediment deposition by use of appropriate measures.

#### **Cond: SEEDING**

All soils exposed during construction must be seeded, planted, landscaped or provided with approved erosion and sedimentation control measures AT, OR PRIOR TO, the final inspection or approval for occupancy. Requests concerning alternatives or exemptions should be directed to a stormwater review technician at Skagit County Planning & Development Services. 360.416.1320



## **About Your Building Permit**

Planning & Development Services • 1800 Continental Place • Mount Vernon WA 98273 voice 360-416-1320 • inspections 360-416-1330 • www.skagitcounty.net/planning

#### Thank you!

Obtaining a building permit is the first step in constructing a safe, legal structure.

Your permit packet should include:

- This handout
- Permit printout
- Approved site plan, construction plans, associated docs
- Approved Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
- Yellow inspection card

#### Now what?

Go forth and construct your project! Be sure to:

- Review any conditions placed on your permit.
- Comply with any clearing limits shown on your site plan.
- Follow your Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan.
- Follow the plans and design approved for your project.

#### Keep your permit packet onsite

Your approved permit, inspection card, site plan, and Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan should be kept on your construction site at all times until final inspection approval.

#### **Get your inspections**

Inspections during construction ensure that your project is built to code. Inspections may include:

- Setbacks, foundation footings, walls
- Shear walls
- Framing, plumbing, mechanical
- Blocking and tie-downs (manufactured home)
- Insulation, energy code, drywall
- Skirting and venting (manufactured home)
- Final occupancy

Many inspections are listed on your card, but not all apply to your project. Be sure to call for inspection at each step so that stage of construction can be properly inspected. For example, if you cover your framing with insulation or drywall, you will impede inspections of the framing and may be required to remove the obstructions.

#### To Schedule an Inspection

Call our 24-hour inspection request line at (360) 416-1330 and leave a voice message with your permit number, site address, and type of inspection. Requests called in before 7:30 a.m. get a same-day inspection. Guemes Island inspections are **only** scheduled on Wednesday and Friday mornings. To talk with

the inspectors before they come to inspect, call 416-1320 between 8:00 a.m. and 8:30 a.m. Monday through Friday.

#### **After Each Inspection**

Check our website (www.skagitcounty.net/search/permits) the following day to verify your project has been inspected and the inspection recorded in your permit file.

#### Final Inspection & Occupancy

It is illegal to occupy your new construction until you have been approved for occupancy. For residential construction, your signed inspection card at final inspection serves as your Certificate of Occupancy. Before you get your final, you must satisfy all permit conditions, including:

- pay any outstanding impact fees
- submit your flood elevation certificate
- submit any required as-built

#### **Revisions**

If you need to revise your permit, call our office and ask to speak with a permit technician. You can submit your revised plans, including site plan revisions if applicable, in person or by mail.

#### **Expiration**

Your permit expires on the date shown on the face of the permit, usually three years from the issue date. If you have not completed your project by the time the permit expires, you have three options.

- Apply in writing to **extend** the permit for six-months. No permit may be extended more than once.
- Renew the permit for an additional 3-year period, by paying the renewal fee, which is currently 30% of the cost of the current building permit fee plus \$120/hour for review of any modified plans (one-hour minimum).<sup>1</sup>
- For non-commercial permits that need only a final inspection, you can final the permit with a fee of \$75 for processing and inspection.

New Building Permit Issued updated 1/13/2017 page 1 of 1

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> SCC 15.04.030(1)(c).



## **Driveway Standards for Skagit County**

Planning & Development Services · 1800 Continental Place · Mount Vernon WA 98273 voice 360-416-1320 · inspections 360-416-1330 · www.skagitcounty.net/planning

A driveway to serve residential *or* commercial uses must meet the following standards from the International Fire Code. These standards are the minimum and apply to all building permits. Roads within a new subdivision must comply with the Skagit County Road Standards.

#### When Fire Access is Required

You must provide a fire apparatus access road for every facility, building, or portion of a building constructed or moved into or within the jurisdiction when the facility is over 150 feet from a fire apparatus access. Exceptions may be made for minor additions or accessory buildings to existing dwellings when in the opinion of the Fire Marshal the addition or accessory building may not create significantly dangerous situations.

#### **General Design Standards**

The standards on the left apply to driveways serving 1-2 residential lots. The standards on the right apply to private roads that serve more than two lots must comply with the Skagit County Road Standards.

	1-2 residential lots	3 or more residential lots or commercial use
Width	12'	20'
Vertical Clearance	13'6"	13'6"
Turning Radius-Inside	20'	20'
Turning Radius-Outside	50'	50'
Turnouts	20' wide and 30' long every 300'	N/A
Road Terminus (for roadways exceeding 150 ft)	Acceptable means of turning around fire apparatus approved by the Fire Marshal	96' cul-de-sac standards or as approved by the Fire Marshal
Bridges	Pursuant to Skagit County Road Standards	Pursuant to Skagit County Road Standards

#### Standards Based on Grade

All residential and commercial driveways must meet these standards

Grade	Surface	Fire Suppression System	Water Storage
≤ 12%	gravel or equivalent; or concrete, asphalt, or equivalent	Not required	Not required
> 12% and ≤ 14%	concrete, asphalt, or equivalent	Not required	Not required
> 14% and ≤ 16%	gravel or equivalent; or concrete, asphalt, or equivalent	NFPA 13D system required	Not required
> 16%	gravel or equivalent; or concrete, asphalt, or equivalent	NFPA 13D system required	10,000-gallon water storage tank with dry hydrant required for each residence

#### **Notes**

- The Fire Marshal may make modifications to these standards if the road is not buildable because of topography, waterways, non-negotiable
  grades, or similar conditions. These modifications are based on the building being protected by NFPA 13D automatic sprinkler systems, and
  additional fire protection as required by the Fire Marshal.
- For roads accepted or platted by Skagit County prior to June 11, 1990, the Fire Marshal may modify these standards if firefighting or rescue
  operations would still be possible.
- For lots not in a fire district and accessible only by water, the access road requirement may be waived if the project meets all of the other requirements of Skagit County Unified Development Code to qualify for a building permit.
- Emergency vehicle access roads or driveways may not be obstructed in any manner, including vehicle parking. Width and clearance requirements consistent with these standards must be maintained at all times.
- Security gates across fire access roads must be approved by the Skagit County Fire Marshal. Security gates must have an approved means of emergency operation by fire personnel.

<sup>1</sup> SCC 15.04.030(2)(f).

#### HELP INFORMATION



## **Duct & Blower Door Test Agencies**

Planning & Development Services · 1800 Continental Place · Mount Vernon WA 98273 voice 360-416-1320 · inspections 360-416-1330 · www.skagitcounty.net/planning

Alpine Heating and Cooling 1957 Park Ln Burlington 360-755-5146 gary@alpineheat.com

Arrow Insulation 200 Suzanne Lane Mount Vernon 360-488-4350

service@arrowconservation.com

Barron Heating & AC 560 S Burlington Blvd Burlington 360-424-4962 scheduling@barronheating.com

CAZ Energy Services 3883 Hammer Drive Bellingham 360-389-1056 dan@cazaudits.com

Foss Heating & cooling 33 E. Blackburn Rd. Suite A Mount Vernon 360-785-6143 info@fossheating.com

Feller Heating & Air 501 Virginia St Bellingham 360-733-4827 eileenfellerheating.com

Gary's Gasworks 705 Sunset Pond Ln#4 Bellingham 360-734-1634 garytoolb@aol.com Handy's Heating 17737 State Route 536 Mount Vernon 360-428-0969

kellyb@handysheating.com

Martin Plumbing & Heating 1469 Sunset Ave Ferndale 360-595-1010 martinplumbingheating@gmail.com

Mike Barnes Marysville 425-308-6235 Mikeabarnes@msn.com

Mumms Heating 2076 Main St. Ferndale 360-201-4822 akincharlie915@gmail.com

Opportunity Council 1111 Cornwall Ave. # C Bellingham 360-734-5121 Sean\_slocum@oppco.org

Paragon Heating Snohomish 425-252-1807 paragonheating@yahoo.com

Progressive Air Systems 17711 W Interurban Blvd. Snohomish 360-668-9948 pashvac@yahoo.com Right Way Plumbing & Heating 647-A Sunset Park Drive Sedro Woolley 360-855-2665 don@rightwayplumb-heat.com

Ronk Bros Heating 210 Northern Ave. Sedro Woolley 360-855-1025 leah@ronkheating.com

Stilly River Mechanical 26910 92<sup>nd</sup> Ave NW Ste, 5-204 Stanwood 360-387-3788 office@stillyrivermechanical.com

Tri-County Heating
Marysville
425-293-7189
tricountyheat@gmail.com

Washington Natural Gas Snohomish WA 425-614-6331 dadams8216@aol.com

West Mechanical Inc 4443 Aldrich Rd Bellingham 360-734-7599 aaron@westmechanical.net

Rosemary Crawford Blower Door Testers Inc. 8317 Menzel Lake Rd/PO Box 833 Granite Falls, WA 98252-0833 ronandrosi@msn.com 425 344-8877

- Skagit County does not recommend, endorse, certify, license, guarantee or vouch for any consultant or their qualifications. In addition, Skagit County assumes no liability for any claims that could develop because of using anyone on this list, thus the user does so at their own risk.
- To see more approved WSE Duct Testers. Please visit http://www.energy.wsu.edu/BuildingEfficiency/EnergyCode.aspx
- Please contact Skagit County Planning & Development Service, (360) 416-1320, if you would like to be added to the list.

## Inspections- IRC section R109 in Skagit County

360-416-1330

#### Types of Inspections

It is the duty of the person doing the work to call for inspections.

- 1. **Inspection Requests:** It is your responsibility to notify the building inspector that work is ready for inspection, and to provide access to and means for inspection of such work. For example, if a ladder is required to inspect the work, provide a ladder. Call 360-416-1330 for an inspection.
- 2. **Location:** The inspector will compare the location of the building with the approved site plan. The building, zoning, critical areas and shorelines all have required setbacks. This is normally done at the footing inspection.
- 3. **Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control:** The inspector will verify that you have taken steps to prevent stormwater contaminated with sediment, concrete or chemicals from leaving the site. This is normally done at the footing inspection.
- 4. **Foundation Inspection**: Call for a foundation inspection after the footing forms or posts are set and reinforcing bar is tied in place. The foundation inspection shall include excavations for thickened slabs intended to support bearing walls, partitions, structural supports, or equipment and special requirements for wood foundations.
- 5. **Floodplain Subfloor Inspection:** Before you begin vertical framing, if you are in a regulated FEMA Flood Hazard area, you must submit documentation from a registered land surveyor that the elevation of the lowest floor and the crawlspace ventilation meets FEMA elevation requirements.
- 6. **Plumbing, Mechanical, Gas System Inspection**: Call for inspection of plumbing, mechanical, gas and electrical systems before fixtures or appliances are set or installed, and prior to framing inspection.

**Exception:** You can backfill ground-source heat pump loop systems tested in accordance with Section M2105.1 prior to inspection.

- 7. **Frame and Masonry Inspection:** Call for inspection of framing and masonry after the roof, masonry, all framing, firestopping, draftstopping and bracing are in place and after the plumbing, mechanical and electrical rough inspections are approved.
- 8. Other Inspections:
  - a. **Fire-Resistance-Rated Construction Inspection:** Where fire-resistance-rated construction is required between dwelling units or due to location on property, call for inspection after all wallboard is in place, but before any plaster is applied or wallboard joints and fasteners are taped and finished.
  - b. **Wallboard and Braced Wall Inspection:** Call for inspection after all wallboard is in place, but before any plaster is applied or wallboard joints and fasteners are taped and finished. The inspector will verify that the right type of wallboard has been used, and that it has been fastened correctly.
  - c. **Special Inspections:** Some projects require periodic or continuous inspection by a certified agency for high strength concrete, high strength bolting, medical gas systems, or other specialized construction. These will be identified by the Project Engineer in design, the Plans Examiner or the Fire Marshal during plan review. Submit the reports to the Building Inspector or Fire Marshal, as directed.
- 9. **Elevation Certificate:** If you are in a regulated FEMA Flood Hazard area, you must submit an Elevation Certificate for the building, based on finished construction. The documentation must be done by a registered land surveyor.
- Final Inspection: Call for a final inspection after the permitted work is complete and prior to occupancy.
- 11. **Approval is Required:** The building inspector, upon notification, will make the requested inspections and will indicate whether or not the construction is satisfactory as completed. Any portions that do not comply with the code must not be covered or concealed until approved by the Building Inspector.





#### What You Should Know About

# Hiring a Contractor, Remodeler, or Handyman

# Are you planning to hire someone to work on your home or property? You need to Hire Smart.

We don't usually think about financial risks when planning a home repair or remodeling project. Yet each year, L&I hears from hundreds of homeowners who've hired someone claiming to be a "contractor."

The vast majority of Washington contractors are honest, skilled, and focused on satisfying their customers. But they also would agree that consumers need to be careful The financial consequence of a bad or abandoned job car be devastating for any homeowner.

# What can you do to protect yourself? Make sure you hire a registered contractor.

Contractors **ARE** required to be registered in Washington if they are:

- Doing any work that "adds to or subtracts from real estate."
- Providing advice or consultation on a construction project.
- Developing residential property or "flipping" houses.

Contractors **ARE NOT** required to be registered if they are providing services such as:

- Gutter cleaning.
- Pruning or lawn care.
- Window washing.



## What is a registered contractor?

A registered contractor must maintain a surety bond, have liability insurance, and have a Washington business license. All information is available online: www.Lni.wa.gov/Contractors.

Washington state *does not* require contractors to pass a competency or skills test to become registered (though L&I does test and license electricians and plumbers.) Still, it is not legal for anyone to perform work, advertise, or submit bids without being a registered contractor.



# How do bond and insurance requirements in Washington contractor laws help protect homeowners?

- They give you financial recourse: Required *bonds* give homeowners some financial recourse if the job is left unfinished or you are not satisfied with it. In these cases, you may take civil action in Superior Court against a contractor's bond. General contractors must post a \$12,000 bond, and specialty contractors, such as painters or landscapers, a \$6,000 bond.
- They can cover damage: The contractor's required general *liability insurance* coverage of \$50,000 covers damage to your property; the \$200,000 public liability insurance covers other personal damages.
- They provide a 'known' business to work with: A required current Washington business license ensures the contractor is not a 'fly by night' company and if the contractor has employees they are covered by workers' compensation insurance, obtained through L&I.

## Note: You may ask to see your contractor's liability insurance policy

This will help you verify what it covers. Many liability insurance policies for contractors include 'construction defect' clauses and/or 'exclusions for work outside of the contractor's normal business practices'. Reviewing your contractor's policy with your own insurance agent may be advisable, especially for larger projects.

### Check out www.ProtectMyHome.net

It's L&I's online toolbox for homeowners looking for the right contractor, where you can:

- Verify a contractor's Washington registration.
- Find out how long they've been registered and if they have workers' compensation insurance for any employees they may have on your property.
- Check for any pending or past legal actions against the contractor and their bonding company, other business names used in the past, and any past infractions.
- Download a copy of our *Hire Smart Worksheet*.
- Get step-by-step advice on how to hire a contractor.



# Before you hire a contractor or remodeler:

Hire smart. L&I can help.

- 1. Verify their contractor registration.
- 2. Get three written bids.
- 3. Don't pay in full until the job gets done.

For more "Hire Smart" tips, go to: www.ProtectMyHome.net

# If you hire a person who is *not* a registered contractor, be aware and manage the risks.

If you *do* decide to hire someone who is *not* a registered contractor, you *could* be considered that person's employer, with wage, tax, workers' comp, safety, and record-keeping requirements.

## To protect yourself from risk and liability—if you are *not* working with a registered contractor—be sure to:

- Get workers' compensation insurance through L&I: If your worker gets hurt, it will pay medical expenses and protect you from being sued. (See Page 4.)
- Pay at least the minimum wage. Find the current required hourly wage at www.Lni.wa.gov/WorkplaceRights.
- **Keep track of hours worked:** You must pay overtime after 40 hours in a given week. Also, if the worker later claims you failed to pay wages correctly, you will have a record.
- Pay/withhold taxes due on the wages:
   Go to www.BizGuide.wa.gov for information.

#### Heads up! Don't pay twice.

Did you know that you, the property owner, are ultimately responsible for ensuring suppliers, subcontractors and workers are paid? If your contractor doesn't pay them, they have the right to file a lien on *your* property to obtain payment.

Learn more in Publication F625-017-000, Facts About Construction Liens.

#### Be wary of contractors who:

- Provide credentials or references that can't be verified.
- Offer a special price only if you "sign today" or use other highpressure sales techniques.
- Accept only cash, require large deposits or the entire cost upfront.
- Ask you to pay in their name, rather than the name of a business.
- Do not provide a written contract or complete bid.
- Ask you to pick up the building permit, usually a contractor requirement. (Permits are for your protection: they help ensure you'll meet building codes.)
- Offer exceptionally long warranties.
- Want to do most or all the work on weekends and after-hours.
- Give you an offer that sounds "too good to be true."

### Protect yourself with permits

Your contractor should obtain all the necessary permits. If you do the work youself, you would need to check which permits are required and obtain them if necessary.

- Building permits: Contact your local county or city building department.
- Electrical permits: www.Lni.wa.gov/ElecPermit.
- Manufactured homes permits: L&I must approve plans and inspect both new and 'altered' manufactured/factoryassembled homes and recreational vehicles for safety. Call your local L&I office or go to www.Lni.wa.gov/FAS.
- Elevator permits for any stair-lifter, pool lifting device or other conveyance. For information, call L&I's Elevator Program: 360-902-6130.

# If you do choose to open a workers' comp account, here's how:

If you are hiring people for new construction, remodeling work, or a property addition, and choose to have L&I workers' comp insurance for protection, here are the steps:

- Go to www.BizGuide.wa.gov and fill out a Master Business Application. Or visit any L&I or WA Dept. of Revenue Business Licensing Office to get an application in person. (Find a Revenue office: www.bls.dor.wa.gov or call 1-800-451-7985.)
- Make sure you check the box that asks if you are hiring workers.
- The application will be routed to L&I and an account manager will contact you to set up the workers' comp account. The entire process usually takes two weeks. Workers' comp premiums for construction workers vary (from under \$2 per hour to \$6 per hour or more for jobs with a higher risk of injury). The coverage provides full medical benefits for the worker if injured on your job.

**IMPORTANT**: Most homeowner policies do not cover workers, so if you decide to hire someone who is not a registered contractor, check with your insurance agent. If you don't have workers' comp coverage, you could be legally liable for a worker's injury costs and would be unprotected from lawsuits.

Call L&I's Employer Services program for more information: 360-902-4817.

# **L&I** has offices throughout Washington ready to help you

**Aberdeen:** 360-533-8200 **Pullman:** 509-334-5296

**Bellevue:** 425-990-1400 **Sequim:** 360-417-2700

**Bellingham:** 360-647-7300 **Silverdale:** 360-308-2800

**E. Wenatchee**: 509-886-6500 **Spokane**: 509-324-2600

**Everett:** 425-290-1300 **Tacoma:** 253-596-3800

**Kelso**: 360-575-6900 **Tukwila**: 206-835-1000

**Kennewick**: 509-735-0100 **Tumwater**: 360-902-5799

**Moses Lake:** 509-764-6900 **Vancouver:** 360-896-2300

**Mt. Vernon:** 360-416-3000 **Yakima:** 509-454-3700

#### **More resources**

▶ Office of the Attorney General, Washington State

For consumer information or to file a complaint:

Online: www.atg.wa.gov/safeguarding-consumers

Phone: 1-800-551-4636

▶ Better Business Bureau

To check out a business or file a complaint:

Online: www.bbb.org

Phone: 206-431-2222 (western Washington) 509-455-4200 (eastern Washington)

#### Contractor information at L&I

■ www.ProtectMyHome.net

■ www.Lni.wa.gov/HiringAContractor

■ Call toll-free: 1-800-647-0982

Upon request, foreign language support and formats for persons with disabilities are available. Call 1-800-547-8367. TDD users, call 360-902-5797. L&I is an equal opportunity employer.



## SKAGIT COUNTY

## Minimum Requirement #2\* Construction Stormwater Pollution Prevention

The objective is to control erosion and prevent sediment and other pollutants from leaving the site during the construction phase of a project. Compliance is required of all projects.

#### Twelve Elements of Construction Stormwater Pollution Prevention

#### **Element 1: Mark the Clearing Limits**

Prior to beginning land disturbing activities, including clearing and grading, all clearing limits, sensitive areas and their buffers, and trees that are to be preserved within the construction area should be clearly marked, both in the field and on the plans, to prevent damage and offsite impacts.

#### **Element 2: Establish the Construction Access**

Construction vehicle access and exit shall be limited to one route if possible. Access points shall be stabilized with quarry spall or crushed rock to minimize the tracking of sediment onto public roads. Public roads shall be cleaned thoroughly at the end of each day.

#### **Element 3: Control the Flow Rates**

Properties and waterways downstream from development sites shall be protected from erosion due to increases in the volume, velocity, and peak flow rate of stormwater runoff from the project site. Any flow control facilities, if required, shall be functional prior to construction of site improvements, and protected from siltation during the construction phase.

#### **Element 4: Install Sediment Controls**

The duff layer, native topsoil, and natural vegetation shall be retained in an undisturbed state to the maximum extent practicable. Sediment ponds, vegetated buffer strips, sediment barriers or filters, dikes, and other protective measures intended to trap sediment on-site shall be constructed as one of the first steps in grading. These protective measures shall be functional before other land disturbing activities take place.

#### Element 5: Stabilize Soils

All exposed and unworked soils shall be stabilized by application of effective protective measures that protect the soil from the erosive forces of raindrop impact and flowing water, and wind erosion. From October 1 through April 30, no soils shall remain exposed and unworked for more than 2 days. From May 1 to September 30, no soils shall remain exposed and unworked for more than 7 days. Applicable practices include, but are not limited to, temporary and permanent seeding, sodding, mulching, plastic covering, soil application of polyacrylamide (PAM), early application of gravel base on areas to be paved, and dust control. Soil stockpiles must be stabilized and protected with sediment trapping measures.

#### **Element 6: Protect Slopes**

Cut and fill slopes shall be designed and constructed in a manner that will minimize erosion. Consider soil type and its potential for erosion. Divert drainage, including stormwater from off-site, from flowing over the slope. Diverted flows shall be redirected to the natural drainage location at or before the property boundary. Contain collected flows in pipes, slope drains, or protected channels. Check dams, or partial barriers, typically constructed of rock or pea-gravel filled bags, shall be placed at regular intervals to reduce the flow velocity within trenches that have a gradient greater than 4%. Stabilize soils on slopes, as specified in Element #5.

<sup>\*</sup>These requirements are from the Western Washington Phase II Municipal Stormwater Permit. Last updated 5/14/2015.

#### **Element 7: Protect Drain Inlets**

All storm drain inlets made operable during construction shall be protected so that stormwater runoff shall not enter the conveyance system without first being filtered or treated to remove sediment.

#### **Element 8: Stabilize Channels and Outlets**

Stabilization, including armoring material such as rock, adequate to prevent erosion of outlets, adjacent streambanks, slopes and downstream reaches shall be provided at the outlets of all conveyance systems.

#### **Element 9: Control Pollutants**

All pollutants, including waste materials and demolition debris, that occur on-site during construction shall be handled and disposed of in a manner that does not cause contamination of stormwater. Management of pH-modifying sources shall prevent contamination of runoff and stormwater collected on the site. These sources include, but are not limited to, bulk cement, cement kiln dust, fly ash, new concrete washing and curing waters, waste streams generated from concrete grinding and sawing, exposed aggregate processes, and concrete pumping and mixer washout waters.

#### **Element 10: Control De-Watering**

All foundation, vault, and trench de-watering water, which has similar characteristics to stormwater runoff at the site, shall be discharged into a controlled conveyance system, prior to discharge to a sediment trap or sediment pond.

#### Element 11: Maintain BMPs

Best Management Practices (BMPs) are activities, protective measures, and maintenance procedures that, when used singly or in combination, prevent or reduce the impacts of erosion and sediment transport. All temporary and permanent erosion and sediment control BMPs shall be maintained and repaired as needed to assure continued performance of their intended function. Sediment control BMPs shall be inspected weekly or after a runoff-producing storm event during the dry season and daily during the wet season. All temporary erosion and sediment control BMPs shall be removed within 30 days after final site stabilization is achieved or after the temporary BMPs are no longer needed. Trapped sediment shall be removed or stabilized on site. Disturbed soil areas resulting from removal of BMPs or vegetation shall be permanently stabilized.

#### Element 12: Manage the Project

Phasing of Construction - Development projects shall be phased where feasible in order to prevent, to the maximum extent practicable, the transport of sediment from the development site during construction. Revegetation of exposed areas and maintenance of that vegetation shall be an integral part of the clearing activities for any phase. Clearing and grading activities shall minimize removal of existing trees and minimizing disturbance/compaction of native soils except as needed for building purposes. If clearing and grading are proposed between October 1 and April 30, silt-laden runoff will be prevented from leaving the construction site by application of erosion and sediment control measures.

<sup>\*</sup>These requirements are from the Western Washington Phase II Municipal Stormwater Permit. Last updated 5/14/2015.

Property address	:			
Builder/registered	d design profession	nal name:		
Builder/reg. desig	gn pro. signature: _			
Conditioned floor	onditioned floor area: ft² (per building permit)			
	F	R-Values (R30	3.1.1)	
Ceiling/	Vaulted R	Floors:	Over uncondition	ed space R
Attic:	Attic R		Slab-on-gr	ade floor R
Walls: Abo	ve grade R		Fully insulated slab	? Y/N (Circle one)
	elow, int. R	Doors:	R, R, R-	·
	elow, ext. R			
	,	vs, Skylights	and Doors (R303.1.1.	3)
	ghted U-value from		•	rage U
			Energy Credits (Tab	le R406.3)
	nber (1 to 5)			
	elected (1 to 7)			
			edits = Total C	redits
	Heating, Co.	oling and Don	nestic Hot Water	
System	Type (Man	ufacturer and	l Model Number)	Efficiency
Heating				
Cooling				
DHW				
Drain water heat				
recovery				
			ectric Power Syste	
System type		_	tem design capacity	kW
Rated annual gen	leration		xWh/yr	
	Mos	Appliance nufacturer and		Energy Star? (Circle one)
Diah waahar	IVIAI	iuiacturer and	a Model	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Dish washer				Y or N
Refrigerator				Y or N
Washer				Y or N
Dryer	Vented or unvente	d? If vented	I, CEF rating	Y or N
-	eating stove (Section corative? (Circle one	•	Fireplace efficiency	(FE)

2018 WSEC Residential Energy Compliance Certificate (Effective February 1, 2021)

HVAC System Duct Leakage Testing (R403.3)	Circle one
All ductwork and air handler in conditioned space? (See Option 4.2)	Y or N
All ductwork in unconditioned spaces buried and tested at 3% total leakage, and nandler in conditioned space? (See Option 4.1.)	dair YorN
All ductwork & air handler outside conditioned space insulated to minimum R-8	? Y or N
Air handler present at duct leakage test? (Total leakage 4% if yes, 3% if no)	Y or N
HVAC leakage to outside test conducted at final?	Y or N
Oo HVAC duct leakage tests include GPS and time stamp verification?	Y or N
HVAC system leakage test calculated design target:	CFM @ 25 Pa
HVAC system leakage test measured results:	CFM @ 25 Pa
Building Leakage Testing (R402.4.1.2)	
Owelling unit leakage test calculated design target:	ACH @ 50 Pa
Owelling unit leakage test, measured results:	ACH @ 50 Pa
Whole Building Leakage test (R2 non-corridor only) design target:	CFM/sf @ 50 Pa
Whole Building Leakage test (R2 non-corridor only) measured:	CFM/sf @ 50 Pa
Oo building leakage tests include GPS and time stamp verification?	Y or N
Whole House Ventilation System Measured Flow Rates (M1505.4 IRC-WA)	Circle one
Are the system controls correctly labeled?	Y or N
The Whole House Ventilation (WHV) system operation and maintenance (O&M) nstructions were provided to the building owner?	Y or N
Provided to: on	(date)
Whole House Ventilation System Type: (Circle one)	
(1) Whole house exhaust fan, location	
(2) Balanced HRV/ ERV, location	
For R2 low-rise, serves more than one unit?	Y or N
(3) Supply or HRV WHV integral to the air handler. Describe system control so operations or reference to design submittal:	
Specify run-time: hours per day	CFM
NHV calculated design minimum flow rate per plan submittal:	
NHV measured min flow rate at commissioning: ExhaustCFM, Supply	/CFM
Oo WHV flow tests include GPS & time stamp verification?	Y or N
HRV/ERV sensible heat recovery efficiency:	
Commissioning Notes:	
	011
Other Mandatory Requirements	Circle one